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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of BIKAJI FOODS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of BIKAJI FOODS
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its Subsidiary
Company (Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company together referred to as “the Group”) which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and
based on consideration of reports of other auditors on financial statements Subsidiary Company, the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
their consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2022, of consolidated profit,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

In our opinion and to

Basis for Opinion

in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors’
udit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
| Statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by Institute of
“|CAI"), and the relevant provisions of the Act and we have fulfilled our
dance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
nd appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We conducted our audit
143(10) of the Act. Our
Responsibilities for the A
independent of the Group in
of the Consolidated Financia
Chartered Accountant of India (
other ethical responsibilities in accor
evidence we have obtained is sufficient al

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention Note 53 to the Consolidated Financial Statements wherein it is stated that the
Subsidiary Company, Petunt Food Processors Private Limited, has net working capital deficit of INR
358.54 Lakhs as of March 31, 2022. The said condition indicates the existence of a material uncertainty
about the Subsidiary Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, the Holding Company
has confirmed to provide financial and operational support for at least next 12 months from the date
of Balance Sheet. In view of the above, the financial statements of the Subsidiary Company have been

prepared on going concern basis.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Director’s report but does not include the Consolidated Financial
Statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is matenally inconsistent
with the Consolidated Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there

is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
Consolidated Financial Statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows
of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing (“SAs™) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expef:ted to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 0f-these Consolidated Financial
Statements. 7 _f'_‘.\\"_-”]d\&
)
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We give in “Annexure A" a detailed description of Auditors’ responsibilities for Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other Matters

1.

We did not audit the financial statements of Subsidiary Company, Petunt Food Processors Private
Limited, whose financial statements reflect total assets of INR 4,485.41 Lakhs as at March 31,
2022, total revenues of INR 2,282.67 Lakhs and net cash inflows amounting ta INR 83.89 Lakhs for
the year ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements is audited by
other auditor “Vishal Chaturvedi & Co.“ whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of such Subsidiary Company and our report in
terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid Subsidiary
Company, is based solely on the reports of the other auditor.

One of the subsidiary Company, Bikaji Foods (London) Limited was dissolved on July 20, 2021,
therefore did not require consolidation.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Reguirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated

Financial Statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its Subsidiary Company, none of the
directors of the Group are disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, . refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B". s ,1“‘4\\

—~I N
¥

Page 3 of 5



M Surana & Company MS KA & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

iv.

The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group- Refer Note 37 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company.

a. The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company
have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief as stated in
Note no. 53(i), no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Holding Company or the Subsidiary Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that such parties shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or the Subsidiary
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b. The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company
have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief as stated in
Note no. 53(ii), no funds have been received by the Holding Company or the
Subsidiary Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date
of this audit report, that the Holding Company or the Subsidiary Company shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries.

c. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances and according to the information and
explanations provided to us by the Management of the Holding Company in this
regard, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us or the other auditors to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

On the basis of our verification and on consideration of the reports of the statutory
auditors of Subsidiary Company that are Indian companies under the Act, interim
dividend declared and paid by the Holding Company during the year and until the date
of this audit report is in accordance with section 123 of the Companies Act 2013.
Further, the subsidiary company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the

year.

“
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2. As required by The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, in our opinion, according to information
and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Holding Company and its Subsidiary
Company is within the limits prescribed under Section 197 of the Act and the rules thereunder.

3. According to the information and explanations given to us, the details of unfavorable/adverse
remarks made by the respective auditors of the Subsidiary Company in the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order (CARO) Reports of the companies included in the Consolidated Financial Statements

are as follows:

' Clause number |

" Sr. | Name of the T CIN Type of Company
| No | Company | {Holding /Subsidiary of the CARO
Company/ Associate) Report
1. | Bikaji Foods  U15499RJ1995PLC010856 | Holding Company | (ii)(b), iii(e),
International
| Limited
2. | Petunt Food U15549KA2017PTC106402 | Subsidiary Company xvii, Xix
Processors
! Private Limited

For M Surana & Company

Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No.:-015312C
! R & N

Manish Surana |-
Partner
Membership No.:

Place: Bikaner
Date: September 03, 2022

For MS K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No.: 105047W

>
N al
Amit Mitra
Partner

Membership No.: 094518 ;
UDIN: 22094518AQVOFS6378

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 03, 2022
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED

F

INANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BIKAJI FOODS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

P

rofessional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the
independent auditors, For the other entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements,
which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

/ "tﬂq
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'-WE communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards,

For M Surana & Company For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants . — Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No,z 0§5342C ICAI Firm Registration No.: 105047W
o T F BB TS 3 oy )
NS Py )S) .
(4 R W) i
Manish Surana ) . R/ X/ Amit Mitra
Partner o) u.__/\g‘\’“f Partner
Membership No.: '?c,.ufii Membership No.: 094518
UDIN: 22077597 AQVQ G~ UDIN: 22094518AQVOFS6378
Place: Bikaner Place: Gurugram
Date: September 03, 2022 Date: September 03, 2022
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BIKAJI FOODS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’' Report of even date to the Members of BIKAJI FOODS INTERNATIONAL
LIMITED on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company as
of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of BIKAJI FOODS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its Subsidiary Company, which are
companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company, which are companies incorporated in India,
have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the
internal control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements criteria established by the
respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI").

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial coptrols with refere_nce to
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company, which are

companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted-ouraudit i.n accorq?ncg with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Overjﬁﬁgndﬂ Repowting (the “Guidance
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Note”) issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to Consolidated Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company and its
Subsidiary Company, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements gFo?pNnadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with m &qn ocedures may deteriorate.

;.\ / '1 |
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Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements in so far as it relates Subsidiary Company, which are companies incorporated in India,
is based on the corresponding reports of Vishal Chaturvedi & Co. of such Subsidiary Company

incorporated in India.

For M Surana & Company
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 015312C

7708 &N
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Manish Surana ||%

0/
Partner \, “\_/'/-i‘ /4
g

N
Membership No.: 07753724 At/
UDIN: 22077597AQVQCRS329

Place: Bikaner
Date: September 03, 2022
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For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 1

ol
-
Amit Mitra
Partner

Membership No.: 094518
UDIN: 22094518AQVOFS6378

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 03, 2022
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Kikaii Feods Intemational Limted
Consolidated Ralance Sheet at at March 31, 2022
(&1L amounts in INR lakhs, unless atherwise stated)

i As at As at
Farticulans i March 31, 2022 March 31, 2071
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETY
Property, plant and equipment | 47,893.01 £,711.51
Capital work-in-progress 4 494435 360771
Investrnent property 5 37084 370.84
Intangible assets [ 115.8% 190,17
Raght-of-use asnet 9 1,699.1¢ 9E5.3E
Financial assets

Investment 7 12,634.55 &, E7T9.T4
Other financiz| assets B 2,014 1,704.50
Loans 12 1,380.84 =
Other assete § 1,437.33 3ma
Income tax assets (net) 10 .06 a7
TOTAL WOM-CURRENT ASSETS 75,961.01 58,1354
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventones " 728315 5676 87
Finanoial aseetc
Trade receivables 13 T,330.% 4 73587
Cash and cash equivalents 14 2%0.4% 17590
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivelents 15 B,7b8 48 555475
Loans 12 13185 1.0
Other finandial assets 16 T908.1% 007,11
Other assets 1l 2,573.10 2,306 7%
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 34,251.08 23,578 45
TOTAL ASSETS 110,272.8% 21,713 94
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 16 1,495.10 1.431.33
Other equity 19 7%,580.04 53,134 52
Total equity attributable to shareholdars 82,075 16 60,565 97
Hon-conirolling interest (6. B0y 183.9¢
TOTAL EQUITY 62,068 3¢ 60,745 31
MHON-CURRENT LI&BILITIES
Financial lizbilibes
Borrowangs 20 4,105.44 1,420.5
Lease lizbilites 19 1,586.7% B2
Provisions bil 1154 151 95
Deferred tax liabilities (net) il 3,774.52 2.532.3%
Other habilities % 147,08 125.44
TOTAL HON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 9,122 33 2753 10
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Finandal hiabilities
Borrowings wn 10,097.24 T.19067
Lease liabilities kS 264,53 £33
Trace payables a
Tota! outstancdng dues of micro enterprises and small BET .2 s10.55
enterprises;
Tetal outstending dues of aeditars other than mico 3.414.08 —
enterprises and small enterprises
. O‘[hcf financial lizbilities 18 1,665.85 * e
Other biabilies % 1,5748 R i
Provisions . n 74 mﬂ
Current tax Labilities (net) 5 2 P
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 19,022 ¢ 18, 21092
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2814401 YT
TOTAL EQUITY AND LLABILITIES 110.212.83 11 i
Lummary of significant accounting policies. 2

The sccompanying notes are an integra! part of Conselidated Financizl Statements.
£ per our report of even date

For W Surans & Competiy
Chartered Accountanis. c

i
Lo o

For W S K A B Associates
Chertered Accountants
Fum Registration No.: 105047w

Partner
Membership Ko : 09451k

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 03, 2022

»
Place: Bikaner
Date: September 03,

A==

= Shily Ratan Agarwal

Chasrman
I (01929249
Place: Bikarwe!
bt 03, 2002

Shambhiu Dayel Gupls

President (ovpos ele afain and Finance

PaH AL PO L

Flace: Buane:

Date: Septonber 03, J007
— o~ e

@)%W -

-

Drvya Mavart

Lorpany Secretany

Wermiberhip ho. Q6014

Flace: Bubanes

Date: Septermber 01, 2022

For and on behalt of the Board of Diecton of
Bika)i Foods International Limited
CIN - US45R 1N995PLCO108%

s -a
Managing Diecio

Duis (M 250

Flace hrw Deiny

Date Septembs 01, 2077
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Bikali Food International Limited
Comehdated Statrment of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
(A1 amounts in INE lakhe, ualess otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
“Revenue March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
DEVEOLE
:':'"\uc from pperations 7 161,096 14 131,074.91
"r’::: Imt-fhr 28 1,048 96 1,146.22
eteinceme 162,145.10 131,221.11
Expenses:
Cost of materials consurmed % 113,604.05 90,915.70
Purchase of stock-in-trade 4,306.89 ERVER-X
Changes in inventories of finished goods and o0 (B£2.37) (351.70)
Finck-in-trade :
Employee benefits expense n 9,004 78 £,957.51
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment EF 3,633 11 3%
EXDENLES
Finance costs n 669.09 299,49
Other expenses 34 29,106.29 15,921.43
Total expenses 151,643 B4 120,209.1
Profit before tax 10,%01.26 12,011.2¢
Tax expense:
Current tax b ) 2,757.2% 3,097.53
Deferred tax b7l 141,16 {119.77)
Profit after tax 7,602.81 9,037.48
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Het gain / (loss) on equity instrument through TO1.45 1.134.79)
pther comprehensive income
Remeasurement gain/(loss) en defined benefit plans 100.36 (4%.87)
income tax (charee) / benetit relating to ems by) (200.97) 29804
that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations $.42
Income tax (charge) relating to Items that will 27 (2.37)
be reclasstfied to profit of loss .
Total other ::fmprerwm income / (loss) for 600.85 [B75.07)
the year (net of tax)
Total comprehensive income 8,203.66 B,154.3%
Profit after tax is attributable to
Owners of the helding Company 7.795.15 9,020.60
Non-contralling imterest (192.34) 128
Dther comprehensive income fs attributable to
owners of the helding Company 599.25 (E75.07]
Hon-controlling interest 1.60 =
Total compr sive income is attrit ble to
owners of the holding Company 835440 B,141.53
Non-controlling interest (190.74) 1286
Eamings per equity share [Equity shares of face value of INR 1 each]
Basic INR (adjusted) 34 315 i
Diluted INR (adjusted) 34(c) 315 3
2

summary of signtficant accounting pelicies.

The accompanying notes are zn integral part of Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bikaji Foods International Limited
Consalidated Statement of Cash Flow fer the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts in INE lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

o Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2027 March 31,2021
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before tax 10,501.26 12,011.22
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expenses 383311 3,311.96
Gain on Lease Modification (12.19) (4.42}
Interest income {bE3.00) (686.51)
Liabilities written off/back to the extent no longer required (157.62) [421.44)
Amortisation of deferred grant income (27.10) (2.56)
Finance costs 6£9.09 795,45
Fair value adjustment on Investment 350,34 113.63
Provision for doubtful debts 36,97 51.47
Bad debts/ advances written off 47 69 4.40
Security deposits written off 2000 .
Amortisation of Security Deposit 341 422
Interest income on Security Deposit (8.9} (15.09)
Excess provision written back of slow moving inventory (20.97) =
Provision for slow moving inventory s 112.96
Provision for refund liabilities 1E.09 5318
Share Based Payment Expense 267.78
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments {net) 1.03 7.55
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 14, 840.77 14,B16.45
Adjustments for:
(Increase) in trade receivables (2,685.20) (516.70)
(Increase)/decrease in other current financial assets (975.13) 105.88
{Increase} in other current assets (165 41) {1,012.85)
(Increase) in inventories [1,591.37) (2,127.58)
(Increase) in other non-current financial assets {34.51) [1%€.82)
({Increase) in other non-current assets (124.4¢) (269.33)
Increase in trade payahles 65.51 2,668.60
Increase in other current financial lizbilities 174,97 354.50
Increase/ (decreass) other liabilities 477 45 (150.18)
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions 33.07 [258.9C)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 9,859.70 13,4487
Tax paid (net of refund, including interest) (4,112.31) (1.728.30)
MNET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (&) 5,747.3% 11,716.57
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipments including capital work in progress (net of (10,786.95) 7.443.118
eapital advance and capital creditors) B
Purchase of capitel asset included in right of use of assets (137.88) %
Consideration paid (net of cash acquired) on business combination (Refer Note 46) § 8%
Sale of Investment in equity instrument % s
Sale of property, plant and equipment 122.14 6895
Loan given (1,390.29) £75.25
Investment in deposits (E,165.7T) (1,157.58)
Interest received 58030 83470
Investment in Other instruments (5,403.59) 4.483.00)
HET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (23,161.47) (11,407.62)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIN 5
Proceed from issue of shares (including security premium) 15,000.00 .
lssue expenses paid 7.50) .
Procesds from long term borrowings 475960 490,00
Repayments of long term borrowings [1.176.24) F.M5.10)
Proceeds from short term borrowings {net) 1,168.54 1.842.50
Grant received 5 198.35
m._nag-nd pai_d o (499.50) (488.27)
Principz!| paid on lease liabilities (102.73) 299.70)
interest paid {653.81) 289 6.;'
Payment made on account of buy back of shares (1.518.31) _
Interest paid on lease liabilities (12879 e
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 16.850.85 50 -m
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) [EEER3Y YT
DPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,292.60) Whoiig !
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCE ON TRANSLATION DF FOREIGN OPERATIONS i ' 9-‘?
—_— %@
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (181580 T80




Eibaid Foad Internationhal Limites
Consahidated Statement of Cach | iow for the year ended March 31, 2022

VAT amonts in INE fakhy, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2011

Year ended
March 31, 2027

Particilary

Reconciliation of cash and cash squivalents
Cash and Bank RBalances as per Balance Shest

Balance with banks

On current accounts {refer note 14) 235.8F 159.84
In grant escrow account . 43.56
Cash on hand (refer note 14) 1457 16.04
Chrgues in had (refer note 14) 8 .
Loans repayable on demand (refer note 20) (2.700.00) 12,000.00)
Bank overdraft (refer note 20) 15.55) z
Baok overdraft (refer note 20) {360.72) (512.08)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (1,B15.52) (2,292.60)
Movement in financial liabilities:

Nor-current and Current berrowing:

Opening balance 1,584 08 3,052.95
Additions through business acquisitions (Refer note 45) 1,386.23
Repayment of Borrowing (1,176.24) (2,345.10}
Proceeds from borrowings 5, 70460 490,00
Closing balance 7,117.44 2,584,028
Reconciliation of Non-current and current borrowings

Secured term loans from banks (refer note 20) 4,105,445 1,420.56
Current maturities of long term loan (refer note 20) 1,612.00 673.51
Short term loan against fixed deposits (refer note 20) 1,400.00 450.00
Total Non-current and current borrowings 7,117.44 2,584.08
Movement in Lease liabilities

Opening Balance 12E.08 164,77
Cash Movements

Payment of lease liabitities {211.52) (310.47)
Mon Cash Movements

Recognition of lease liabilities 1,501.84 7.1
Additions through business acguisitions (Refer note 46) - 1,465 B3
Interest expense for the year 126.7% 14.9¢
Lease lizbilities written back (63.44) {1,303.80)
Gain on Lease Modification [12.19) [4.47)
Closing Balance of Lease Libilities 1,851.58 128.08
Reconciliation of Lease liabilities

Lease lizhilities - non Current 1,586,735 BLTZ
Lease liabilities - CurTent 264.87 4538
Totz! Lease liabilities 1,851.58 128.0E

Summary of significant accounting policies.

As per pur report of even date
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Bikaji Foods International Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

2.1

a)

b)

General information

Bikaji Foods International Limited (the ‘Parent Company’ or ‘Holding Company’) is a Company
domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at F-196-199, F-178 and E-188, Bichhwal
Industrial Area, Bikaner - 334006. (Rajasthan). The Company was incorporated in year 1995 under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, then applicable in India.

These consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries referred to
collectively as the ‘Group’). The Group is primarily involved in manufacturing, purchase and sale
of snacks food.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 were
approved and authorized for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Company’s Board of
Directors on September 03, 2022.

Significant Accounting Policies

Significant accounting policies adopted by the Company are as under:
Basis of preparation of Consolidated financial statements
Statement of Compliance

The Consolidated Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time, and presentation
requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il to the Act.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under historical
cost convention, except for certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value
(refer para 2.2(S) of accounting policy).

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (“%¥”) which is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

All amounts disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes have been rounded off to
the nearest “Lakhs”, unless otherwise stated. Transactions and balances with values below the
rounding off norm adopted by the Company have been reflected as “0” in the relevant notes to
these Consolidated Financial Statements.

Basis of Consolidation

Where the Company has control over an investee, it is classified as a subsidiary. The Company
controls an investee if all three of the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure to variable returns from the investee, and the ability of the investor to use its power to
affect those variable returns, Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of control.

The consolidated financial statements present the results of the Bikaji Foods International Limited
and its subsidiary as if they formed a single entity. Intercompany transactions and balances
between group companies are therefore eliminated in full,

NCl are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets on the date
of acquisition.




Bikaji Foods International Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

d)

2.2

A)

Subsidiaries considered in the Consolidated Financial Statement:
B ﬁ)uﬁerg_lli_p?t_e;e_st (in %)_fDirect) [
f March 31, 2022 |

Country of
Name of Company | incorporation _
India - _51.22ﬂ

Petunt Foods Processors
| Private Limited - _ -

Use of Estimates and judgements

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the
Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported amount of revenue and expenditure for the year
and disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and assumptions
used in the accompanying consolidated financial statements are based upon the Management's
evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on a year basis. Revisions to accounting estimates, if any, are recognised in the year
in which the estimates are revised and in any future years affected. (refer para 2.2(V) of accounting
policy).

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Current Vs Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non- current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting year, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting year.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

e Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

e |tis held primary for the purpose of trading,
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting year, or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting year.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Based on the nature of business and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as
twelve months for the purpose of current and non- current classification of assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current assets/ liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.




Bikaji Foods International Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

B)

a)

b)

<)

Revenue recognition
Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when control of the products being sold is transferred to our
customer and when there are no longer any unfulfilled obligations. The performance obligations in our

contracts are fulfilled at the time of dispatch, delivery or upon formal customer acceptance depending
on the customer terms.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any
trade discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government such as
goods and services tax, etc. Accumulated experience is used to estimate the provision for such discounts

and rebates. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highly probable a significant reversal will not
occur,

For sale of goods wherein performance obligation is not satisfied, any amount received in advance is
recorded as contract liability and recognized as revenue when goods are transferred to customers. Any
amount of income accrued but not billed to customers in respect of such contracts is recorded as a
contract asset. Such contract assets are transferred to Trade receivables on actual billing to customers.

In case customers have the contractual right to return goods, an estimate is made for goods that will be

returned and a liability is recognized for this amount using the best estimate based on accumulated
experience.

Other income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Dividend income on investments is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment is stated

at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of
materials, direct labour and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to its intended
working condition including capitalised borrowing costs, if any, and estimated costs of dismantling,
removing and restoring the site on which it is located, wherever applicable,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs

and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting year in which
they are incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included
in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leasehold improvement are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the period of lease.




Bikaji Foods International Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

The cost of the assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under the head 'Capital work-
in-progress.

D) Depreciation methods, estimated useful life and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
value, over their estimated useful lives. The Company has used the following rates to provide
depreciation on its property, plant and equipment which are similar as compared to those
prescribed under the Schedule Il to the Act.

Property, plant and equipment Estimated useful life
Plant and equipments 15 Years
Factory building 30 Years
Buildings

- Office building with RCC frame structure 60 Years
- Flats (Other building) 60 Years
Furniture and fixtures 10 Years
Office equipment 5 Years
Vehicles

- Scooters and motorcycles 10 Years
- Motor cars and trucks 8 Years
Computers and peripherals

- Servers and networks 6 Years
- End user devices, such as, desktops, laptops etc. 3 Years

The management has estimated, supported by assessment by company’s professionals, that the
useful life of the following categories of assets are lower than that indicated in Schedule Ii, based
on usage profile of the respective asset category:

[ Category Useful lives estimated by
' the management
Furniture and fixtures 6 Years ]
Plant and machinery 25 Years

Individual assets costing INR 5,000 or less are fully depreciated in the period of purchase. The
residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The residual values and useful
lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting year.

The useful lives is reviewed at least at each year-end. Changes in expected useful lives are treated
as change in accounting estimates.

E) Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the Company, is classified as investment property. Investment property is measured
initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to
the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value
of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual
evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer applying a valuation model
recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they ate\tl;;j-?

s permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their dispasat: C)
td . The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is—
~. ., \recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period of derecognition. LI
\ -‘\ 4 )/‘;\“‘ -Q—\/




Bikaji Foods International Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

F) Intangible asset

Intangible assets including those acquired by the Company are initially measured at acquisition cost.
Such intangible assets are subsequently stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortisation.

The Company amortises intangible assets with a finite useful life using the straight line method
over the following year:

A summary of amortisation policies applied to the Company intangible assets is as below:

Intangible assets - Useful life
Trademarks 10 Years
ERP software licences 5 Years

Intangible assets with finite lives are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation method and period for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting year.

G) Inventories

Raw material, packing material and finished goods
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
follows:

Raw materials and packaging materials are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
includes purchase price, (excluding those subsequently recoverable by the enterprise from the
concerned revenue authorities), freight inwards and other expenditure incurred in bringing such
inventories to their present location and condition. In determining the cost, FIFO method is used.

Manufactured finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
manufactured finished goods comprises direct material, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal
operating capacity.

Cost of inventories also includes all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

H) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker (CODM).

"The board of directors of the Company assesses the financial performance and position of the
Company and makes strategic decisions. The board of directors, which has been identified as being
the chief operating decision maker, consists of managing director and other directors. Refer note
38 for segment information presented.

"1)  Finance costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings.

NGeneral and Specific borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
S aid '_:.:%Jsuction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready W
‘- ——_dntended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All the

_ \kﬁsf\fpwiﬂg costs are expensed in the period they occur.

WED

e |1
|\\l"‘)
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Bikaji Foods International Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

J)

a)

b)

ii.

<)

Employee Benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the year in which the employees render the related service
are recognised in respect of employees’ services up-to the end of the reporting year and are
measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Leave encashment: Accumulated leaves which are expected to be utilised within next 12 months
are treated as short term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such

absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that
has accumulated at the reporting date.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

Defined contribution plan

Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where
the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution
Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made
on a monthly basis which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee's State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees’ state insurance scheme is
made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits
are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further

obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis which are charged to the
statement of profit and loss.

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity: The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires
contributions to be made to a fund set up by Life Insurance Corporation of India. Provision in respect
of Gratuity is made as per actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary. The cost of
providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using projected unit credit method.
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, and the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through Other Comprehensive Income in the year in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not classified to Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent years. Past service
costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the earlier of the date of the plan
amendment or curtailment and the date on which the Company recognises related restructuring
costs. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The Company recognises service costs comprising current service costs, past- service costs,
gains and losses on curtailment and non-routine settlements, and net interest expense or income
in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Share based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in
equity. At the end of each reporting year, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in the consolidated Statement of profit and loss such that the cumulative expense

reflects the revisede ate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share option’s outstanding
account. /%" _
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K) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

If assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share
prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGU's to which the individual assets are
allocated.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

L) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provision are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
Balance Sheet date.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is not either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

A contingent asset is not recognized unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic

penefits will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements.

M) Foreign currencies transactions and translations
".:-_"H-‘T?{:'?,The functional currency of the Company is the Indian Rupee. These Consolidated Fina;_ii;'tal
2\ '\;\.-r—"_%@}ements are presented in Indian Rupee. %\
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N)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are
translated into the relevant functional currency at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet
date. The gains and losses resulting from such translations are included in net profit in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured
at fair value are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency
and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of the
transaction. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income or Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or
Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively).

Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are included
in determining net profit for the year in which the transaction is settled.

Taxes

Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax are included in the determination
of the net profit and loss for the year.

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting year and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credit and unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences,
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. The carrying amount of deferred tax
asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity in equity. In
this case, the tax js alsp recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively. ~ « =" 0 -
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0)

P)

R)

(i)

(i)

—

~ - T>._payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless they are
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\!'_,_p_lhyment occurs. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses; its
“'or Lincremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate impligit in
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Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year. The weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for
events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed
the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash in
bank and short-term deposits net of bank overdraft.

Dividend Distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the year in which the
dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on approval by
Board of Directors. Dividend paid and corresponding tax on dividend distribution is recognised
directly in equity.

Leases

As a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. The
jmpact of the adoption of the standard on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is
shown in note 39 of the consolidated financial statements.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right- of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
tease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual

. value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option

reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
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is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(iii) Short-term leases

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of building
(i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments of short-term leases are recognized as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

S) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets
(i) Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss. The
classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Company's business model for managing them.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
0OCl, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on
the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed
at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

(ii) Subsequent measurement:

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

a) at amortised cost; or
b) at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); or

c) at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and
foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial ag;g_;s\

is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. 1 g,o
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business combination. Pursuant to such irrevocable election, subsequent changes in the fair value
of such instruments are recognized in OCI. However, the Parent Company recognizes dividend
income from such instruments in the Statement of Profit and Loss, after conversion into equity
shares, when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Parent Company and the amount can be measured reliably.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments,
the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income all
subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes
on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the
amounts from OC| to profit and loss, even on sale of investment.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the profit and loss.

(iii)  Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost, FVTPL and FVTOCI and for the measurement and recognition of credit
risk exposure.

The Company follows a ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognises the impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in
subsequent year, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment
loss allowance based on 12 months ECL.

Life-time ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the year end.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimate. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward- looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company estimates
impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls),
discounted at the original effective interest rate (EIR). When estimating the cash flows, an eptity
is required to consider all contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayms
tension etc.) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases'whe
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(iv)

b)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

3 \FQCOgmtmn of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is r

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the year is recognised as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss. In balance sheet ECL for financial assets measured at
amortised cost is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those
assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets
write off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying

amount,
Derecognition of financial assets:
A financial asset is derecognised only when:

a) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred; or
b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the financial asset is transferred then in that case financial asset is derecognised only if
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Where the
entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the financial asset is neither transferred, nor the entity retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, then in that case financial asset is derecognised only if
the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of
the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement
in the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and at amortised cost, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially

at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

Subsequent measurement:
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL):

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method. Gains and losses are recognised in
statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial liability:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled

or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lendg’?r\

mbstantlally different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modifi ed,s
an,\exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and.r.he_

Y _t_berstatement of profit and loss as finance costs.
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c) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty.

T)  Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is measured at cost less impairment as per Ind AS 27 - ‘Separate Financial
Statements’'.

Impairment of investments:

The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost annually, or more frequently
when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is accounted in the statement of profit and loss.

U)  Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
accessible to the Company.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

- Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

‘For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting year,

E‘xtern_al valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted
financial assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration.

F_nr _t_hg: purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
P liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the tevel

©Urg, -0f the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 7SN
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V) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future years.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Useful life, method and residual value of property, plant and equipment

Plant and machineries and factory buildings contribute significant portion of the Company's
Property, plant and equipment. The Company capitalises its plant and machineries and factory
buildings in accordance with the accounting policy disclosed under note 2.2 (D) above. The Company
estimates the useful life and residual value of assets as mentioned in note 2.2(D). However the
actual useful life and residual value may be shorter/ less or longer/ more depending on technical
innovations and competitive actions. Further, the Company is depreciating its plant and equipments
and factory buildings by using straight line method based on the management estimate that repairs/

wear and tear to plant and machineries and factory buildings are consistent over useful life of
assets.

Estimations in contingencies/ provisions

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made estimation pertaining
to contingencies and provisions that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment and

relates to the determination of contingencies and provisions outstanding with significant
unobservable inputs.

Taxes

Deferred tax, subject to the consideration of prudence, is recognised on temporary differences
between the taxable income and accounting income that originate in one year and are capable of
reversal in one or more subsequent years. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future tax income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realised. The measurement of deferred tax balances requires estimation
of the year of transition to the new tax regime basis the financial projections, availability of
sufficient taxable income in the future and tax positions adopted by the Company.

Judgments

- Assessment of liability as remote, contingencies or liability/ provision

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, Management has made judgement in respect
of classification of impact of certain pending/ existing tax related litigations as remote, probable
obligation or possible obligation based on facts and involvement of external experts. Such
judgement by the management materially affects the consolidated financial statements.

W) Recent accounting pronouncements

Epp— MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment thes.

g&ggr Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On Marg2 m
; 270
a ,\v(ple from April 01, 2022, as below:
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X)

Ind AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework:

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method,
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and
liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards
(Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition
date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103.

Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use:

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing,
if any, shall not be recognized in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs
considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual years beginning on or after April 1, 2022.

Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts:

Costs of Fulfilling a Contract The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract
can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour,
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

Ind AS 109 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021):

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind
AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability.

Ind AS 116 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021):

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that illustration.

The Group is assessing the impact of these changes and will accordingly incorporate the same in
the Consolidated financial statements for the year ending March 2023.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flows from regular revenue generating (operating activities), investing and
financing activities of the Group are segregated.
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Bikaji Foods International Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 4: Capital work-in-progress

2022

Particulars A at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening balance ) 3,607.71 288.23
Acquired through business combination (Refer note 46) 38.30
Add: Additions during the year 12,360.98 £,587.36
Less: Capitalised during the year (11,074.34) (3,306.18)
Closing balance # 4,944 35 3,607.71
# Capital work-in-progress majorly comprises expenditure for new production facilities/ lines.
Ageing of Capital work-in progress is as below
As at March 31, 2022
Particulars | Lessthan fyear | 1-2years | 2-3 years [ More than 3 years Total
| Projects in progress 4,305.42 581.50 57.43 4,5944,35
4,305.42 581.50 57.43 - 4,944.35
As at March 31, 2021
Particulars —[ Less than 1 year | 1-2yea rs_r_ 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total _]
Prajects in progress 3,550.28 57.43 ; - 3,607.71
3,550.28  57.43 - 3,607.71
Mote 5: Investment property
Particulars Other Buildings Land (freehold) * Total
Gross block at cost
As at April D1, 2020 160.8% 370.84 531.73
additions i
Transfer to property, plant and equipment™” {160.89) (160.89)
As at March 31, 2021 - 370.84 370.84
As at March 31, 2022 - 370.84 370.84
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01, 2020 10.93 - 10.93
Charge for the year u R
Transfer to property, plant and equipment”” {10.93) (10.53)
As at March 31, 2021 2 =
As at March 31, 2022
Met block
As at March 31, 2022 ” 370.84 370.84
As on March 31, 2021 = 370.84 370.84

- All immovable properties are in name of the Group. However, there are certain immovable properties ageregating carrying value of INR 98.08 lakhs (previous year:

INF. 98.08 lakhs) are still being carried in erstwhile name of the parent Company i.e. Shivdeep Industries Limited.

“~ The Parent Company has reclassified certain Investment Property as owner occupied during the year ended March 31, 2021 persuant to change in use by the

Company 2t net carrying value. (Refer note 3).

Footnote: (2) Fair value

Particulars

As at
March-31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Fair value

1,214.70

2,130.60

The fair value of investment property has been determined by external, independent registered property valuer as defined under Rule 2 of the Companies (Registered
valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017, having appropriate recognised professional qualification and recent experience in the location and category of the property being
valued. The Company obtained independent valuation for its investment properties and fair value measurement has been categorized as level 3 inputs. The tair value
has been arrived using market prevailing rates applicable to same location. Increase in market rate of property in same location would result in increase in 1air value
of investment property and vise versa.




Bikaii Foads International Limited
Notes to Consalidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 6: Intangible assets
Particulars Trade marks Computer software Total
Gross block at cost
As at April D1, 2020 62.19 221.61 281.80
Additions through business acquisitions (Refer note 46) 1.41 1.41
Additions 77.58 T7.58
Disposals/ adjustments . . <
As at March 31, 2021 62.19 300.60 362.79
Additions 4B.B5 4B.83
Disposals/ adjustments : i .
As at March 31, 2022 62.19 345.45 411.64
Accumulated amortisation
As at April 01, 2020 28.66 105.81 134.47
Additions through business acquisitions (Refer note 46) 0.59 0.5%
Charge for the year ¢ 37.56 37.%
As at March 31, 2021 28,66 143,96 172.62
Charge for the year 5.73 117.40 123.13
As at March 31, 2022 34.39 261.36 295.75
Net block
As at March 31, 2022 27.80 85.09 115.89
33,53 156.64 190.17

As at March 31, 2021

----Space intentionally left blank----
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Bikaji Foods International Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(A1l amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 7: Financial assets - investments

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2012 March 31, 2021

Investments at fair value through OCI (FYTOCI)

Unguoted

28.13,080 CCPS { Previpus year 28,13,050 CCPS) of INR 10 each in Hanuman Agro Foods Private Limited 1,163.20 461.97
Total FVTOCI investments 1.163.20 461.97
Investments at fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL)

Unquoted

Investment In mutual fund 104 8L 101,37
Investment in eguity shares 3.00 5.00
Investment in Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPs)” 73547 16.40
Investment in Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCD) 9,139.92 5.114.00
Investment in Optional Convertible Debentures (OCD) 14372 17 50,00
Investment in convertible note 730.00
Total FVTPL investments 11,471.35 6,416 77
Total investments 12,634.55 6,87%.74
aspregate book value of unguoted investments 12,634 55 6.879.74
Ageregate amount of impairment in value of investments (351.84) (1.2149.79)
Agpregate amount of gain in value of investments 704 94 .37

*During the year 2020-21, the Parent Company invested in convertible note of Shop Kirana E - Trading Private Limited which got converted into compulsarily convertible preferance

shares dated March 11, 2022 amounting to INR 730 lakhs.

Note B: Other financial assets

Particulars

As at

March 31, 2022

As at
March 31,2027

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Carried at amortised cost

Security deposits 32663 306 54
Bank depesits with original maturity period of more than 12 months # 946,06 1,397 %
Balances with banks held as margin money & 1,540.41 .

Total 2,813.14 1,704.50

# Represent deposits under lien by bank against bank guarantees and letters of credit

Note 9: Other assets

Particulars

As at

March 31, 2022

As at

March 31, 2021

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Capital advances

Considered good 1,683.10 274 ae
Considered doubtful 77.76 172
Less: Allowance for doubtful advance (27.26) @72
Other than capital advances

Prepaid expenses 103.7¢ 7266
fHalance with government authorities # 850 47 557 10
Total ’ 2,437.33 337143

# Represents writ petition filed by the Parent Company before Jodhpur High Court for transitioning CENVAT credit in respect of capital goods purchased dunng April 0, 206 o June
30, 2017 in pre-GST pefiod. Certain goods manufactured by the Parent Company were hitherto exempted from the levy of central excise duty but has become taxabie under GS7
regime. Considering that input tax credit is available on such purchases in the GST period, the writ has been filed on the equitable grounds in Line with the objectve of G5T to aveid
cascading effect of tares and ensure seamiess flow of credit. Based on internal assessment, management believes that the Parent Company has good chances of winning this master
i their favour.

Hote 10: Income tax assets (net)

hs at As ar
Particulars March 31, 1022 March 31,2021
advarice Income tax (net of provision for tax of INR 12,531.72 lakhs (March 31, 2021 INR 6,676.90 lakhs) 1l 11421
Total 872,09 I




Bikaii Foods International Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(AL amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 11: Inventories *
(At cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower)*

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Raw materials 2,183.80 1,974.72
Packing materials 2,797.27 2.574.38
Finished goods
- In Stock BEA 6T 599,48
- Goods in transit BE5 68 176,49
Stock in trade 12.01
Stores and spares 1317.71 21973
7,189.15 5,676.81

Total

During the year ended March 31, 2022, there is a reversal of provision for slow moving inventory for an amount of INR 20.97 lakhs and during the year ended March 31, 2021, there wi

slow moving inventory for an amount of INR 112.96 lakhs.
* Refer note 20 for information related to inventories hypothecated by the Company against cash credit facility.
* For stores and spares, refer accounting policies.

Note 12: Loans
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Carried at amortised cost
Non-current Loan

Loans Receivables considered good - Unsecured 1,380.64

Total 1,380.64 '3
Current Loan

Loan Receivables considered good - Unsecured 131.85 122.20
Total 131.85 122.20

The loans have been given in accordance with terms and conditions of the underlying agreements executed with body corporates as per their request for urgent financial as:

The fundings provided during the year have been duly authorised by the Board of Directors pursuant to Board Meeting convened on September 02, 2021.
These loans are provided at interest rate between B% to 9% p.a (previous year : 11%)

----Space intentionally left blank----
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Bikui Frodh International Limited

Nates v (ensalidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 11, 2032

AL mmeunts i INE lalhs | wnless othe rwie stated

_Nete 13 Trade recebvables ©

Farticulars

As mt
March 31, 2032

As at
Masch 31, 2021

Trade recebvables - Ursecured 747520 4,842.60
Lrss Allowance for expected credit (oses (1€ £5) M1.72)
Total 7.330.56 4.730.88
Ereabup of trade receivables:
Redated parties & 756,36 b v 4]
- Dheny 7,077 4,700 78
Total 7.330.56 4.730.88
* Refer note 20 for thformation related to trade receivables hypothecated by the Group arainst cash credit farility.
# Trade recevables includes recefvablet from private companies in which director of the Group iv e director, (Refer note 34)
Ageing of trade recetvables as at March 31,2022
Dutstanding for following period: from due date of payment
Particular Lets than & & month: -
Not Due ot year 1-2 years 2-3yean More than 3 year Tota
Undwputed trade receivables - unwecured 470.37 6,320.58 A18.47 5473 671 7.330.54
Total 470 37 ®,320.5F 41E17 54.73 PR 7,330.54
Ageing of trade receivables a= st March 31,2071
Dutstanding for follawing periods from due date of payment
Particile Lesuthan € & manths-
. 5 I
Not Due iy Srgar 1-2 years -3 year Mare than 3 years Tota
Undisputed trade receivables - considered good 305,83 4,221.77 156 ba pLiva) 17.41 - AT 22
Tetal 30983 4,221.77 15664 25.23 17.41 = 4,730.88
MNote 14: Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at Az at
March 31, 2021 Marzk 31, 2071
Balances with barks
= In current accounts 35 ER 15582
Cash on hand 14.57 16.04
Total 150 43 175.%0
Mote 15 Bank balances othe: than cash and cash equivalents
" A at As a
lars.
Particu March 31, 2623 Marzh 31, 2021
Bank. deposits with original maturity periad of more than 3 month and kess than 12 menths §,134.67 777018
Balance with Bank held as Margin Money™ 2,633.81 TELO
In grant escTiw accoumnt” = 43.58
Teta! E, 768 48 §,364.76

# Represents deposits under lien by bank ageinst bank guarentees and letters of credit

- i.e. Escrow account Government grent which cen be utilised for payment of eligible vendors of Property, plant and eqiipment only.




Bika)i Foodsy Internationsl Limited

Notes to Comsolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(A1l amounts in INR Iakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

Maote 16: Dther financial assets

Particular Az at As at

March 31, 2011 March 31, 2021
Carried at amortived cost
Security depotits
Considered good 20 44 13.08
Others
Bank deposits with original maturity penod of more than 12 months and residual maturity less than 12 Menth 6,257.56 1,424.71
Balance with Bank held as Margin Money® 47,00 45.00
IPO Expenses recoverable™ B45.45 .50
Advance recoverable 13.60
Interew accrued on bank deposits and others 528,92 42682
Toea! 7,908_1% 2,001.11
¥ Under lien by bank against the bank guarantee and letter of credit

As at Az at

March 31, 2022 March 31,2021

= Includes payment to auditors 118.30 nsr

“During the year ended March 31, 2012,

the Parent Compamy has incurred expenses of MR 754,15 lakhs aggregating up to INR B45.65 lakhs as on March 31, 2022 towards various wrvices recetved in
connection with proposed initial public offer of its equity shares through offer for sale by existing shareholders, As per the offer agreement between the Parent Company and the selling shareholders, the

selling shareholders shall reimburse the afaresaid expenses in proportion to their holdings to be sold on listing of the Patent Company's equity shares, Pending such listing of the Parent Company's equity
shares and identification of

e ool such

between the Company and selling shareholders, the aforesaid amount has been considersd as a recelvable and reported as PO expenses
recoverable,

Note 17: Other assets

Particulars ha b

March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2621

Advances 1o vendors

898.00 1,8629.93
Prepaid sxpense 353.62 119.54
Balance with government authonties 1,066, 87 370.28
Government grant (exports incentive| receivable 154.90 13
Employees advances (unsecured, considened good) 9981 73.55
Tetal 2,573.20 21,306.79

*There are re unfulfilled conditions attached to these grants (Refer note 27).

----Space intentionally left blank----




Bika |l Voo inte rmations | Limites
Netes te Conuatidated FInancal Sttement: (o the year erded March 11, 2012
LAL amapnts in [KE Whhs, wnbes: otherwise stated |

_Note 12 Eguity share capiial

o o [
A March 31, 1021 parh 31,2000
Authoriped share capital#
V000,000 mauity shares, (Previoos year 25,000,000 eguity shetry| of N5 1 each (Previoos year 9% 10 each| ® i -
o
- 3.000.00 2.500.0C
Bxued, subscrited and ful 1d up 3! tal
24,950, PEED equity thares (Previos yeas 4,113 W% equity shares) of 17 1 each (Previeus year INFAD each] * —_ .
o 749500 T.a31.1

# During the year, the austhorired share capital was incrrased fram 25,000,000 equity sthares of N3 10 each amounting to N7 1,500 Lakte ta 300,000,000 pquity shares af INT T each amounting to N8 3,000 Lokt which war dly approved by the
beard of Directars of the Group: in meeting dated Seplemier 2, 2071 and by thw shareholders of the Parert Company in extracedinary general mecting held or Dctober 22, 2001

*The Parent company effected 2 ten-for-one stock a0t it of the Egisty share of the Farent Company The stock spiit was approved by the board of Directors of the Group in mesting dated September 3. 2031 aret by the sharmholde in prRosinery

general mesting on Dctober 22, 2021, The face valoe and autharized thares of Equity shares were alus adjusted & # result of the stock split
Refer note 1E(e ) below

a1 Reconcihation of equity shares outstanding ¥t the bepinning and st the ene of the reporting year.

t.l'rcFJL!bll e March 11 2821
Farticulars Humnbet of shares (in . Kurber of thares (In FErn
lakh:| akh)
Balance at beginning of the year 241,17 24113 412
Add: bered during the year © 6.8
sdd: Equity shares raising @ shares split from INF 10 to IHE 1 per shares” 7.041.5%
Leess: Buy-beck of equity shares |4 &) 4 40
Balarce at end of the year EEIIED 7495 10 24313 7431 31

* The Parent Comparny has tssed &,87,68] eguity shares of INE 10 each &t b preriom of INR 2,190, 44 each, total amouiting INE 13,000 Lakir under preferential aliotment dated Augst 11, 2071, The share capital was s o meet func
regUirement for it business and expansion.

“The teed, saibseribed b paid up capital eonsisting of 1,45 64,9KE (adw equity chares of the parent compary having fasce valor of INR 10 ezch shall stare! sub dhision inta 24,99, 45,880 equity share having face value of INE 1 eschw | Drushe:
22, 2021 without altering the agregate amoun! af wich capital B chall rank pari passy in ol regaect E carTy the same right & 1o the existing Tully pald up equnty shares of INP 10 pach of the perent commeny

) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shareholders:
Equity Shares: The Group has only one class of equity shares having par value of INE 1 per shere |previous year INF 10 each). Each shareholde+ & entitled to onr vote per shawe held. Dividend H amy declares & payzhss in Indian npe=s The
dnidend proposed by the Board of Directo s subject to the approvel of the shereholders in the ensiing Annual General Meeting.

munemntufmﬂatim,ﬂreq\nwwn.;melmhhmmc!m“rmzinlnsmtdﬂrormpaﬂu aribution of all pre ial amounts, in prop to their shareholding The distiitution wil be i areeertion D the mumber of
Eouity share held by the sharchelders

ic1 The details of Shareholdes holding more than 5% ecuity shared of the Group are az undet &

Murmber of shares (in % of Holdhng as &t March Mumber of shares (in %o Hoidfing =t

Marme af sharehelders Lakhs) 31, 012 balkhs! Marzh 11, X1

shrv katen sgarwal - [FIEE 3/ BE4T BEIT
Shiv Ratan Agerwal HUF 612.03 24,50 1.0 BT
Derpek Arzrwel A14.06 14 9 177
WFL Special Opportunitiss Fund . 19556 B.OI% 15 [ Basd
inchia 2020, Maharaje Limited 1B1.64 728 1817 7467%

regarding Sficial interest, the above shareholding represent both bege’ and benefical ownesiny & shares

uurmdmsw.mpmdﬂmﬂﬂdem members and other decleration recened fs

|#1 Mo else of shares have been fsued as barks shares or for conmderation other than cash by the Group during the period of Hve yerrs immediatzly preceding the currenl year enc.

fe] ‘Shares bought back during the immediately preceding fve yesrs.

punng the yeer, the Farent wnymwlnedmwyalcknt&ﬂa,meqmwslumsdlﬂmﬂ:hrmuypiid-up:lu price of INR 280,06 par equity share azgregating to INR 1,130.26 ik (exluding i iy e,
cmxmmutgmmr'ﬁhmnmmdm&.lﬁmWnﬁmmTuchmmmhub-rnlfdﬂedlromhwr:mmlmwmn,_mmm",“m- kit --_-,,'I 5 o
Mnurmmimnlﬂmudmmlﬂﬁ. e amount 5 Capitsl Redempoon

1) Detadls of prometers’ sharcholding percentaee ir. the Parent Compary is as below:

Wame of Promoter As at March 3% 2023 Az 2 March 31,2021
HNumb=r of shares {in % of Holding % of change Number of shares {in Lkhs) % ef Feidng A =f cnange
lnkhs)
Shiv Ratan Anerwal BE.43 1537 o0t ) T
Stuv Rrtar Agzree! [HUF) 612,03 24.53% D.64% ey
Derpet Agarwal 414.06 16,59 06T i
Deepat bumar Agarwe! (HUF) 0.17 0018 0.0 s -
Tota! 1 %08 EF Te.50% ik TE
() Shares reserved (o TR Undes opboTe:
For details of sheres reserved for © the Share based payment, plan of the Group, pleass refer note 43.

—,




L AL EER SRR tatematéona Limbes
Notes e {enastantes Financial Satersents for the yeat ented March 31, 1022
(AT emeunts i INE lakhe uniews miheradce st ed)

Nkt AT Dher egully

Farthuiany Asat
Warekh 31, 1011

Seovtities pepmium
Drweniag Balarce 20,4724 043736
AT Seounity premiuT 60 Boe o pquity shates -
brew tuv-back of equity sharms during the yeat

e Withhalding Las paid on boy-back of equity sheres duning the year
bee . sharr s expenees during the yrar -
Closing Balance (A} 13,847 45 0,431 26

Grneal reserve

Opening Balerce 15206 15109
Less: trarsfer to capital redemption reserve (refer note 18 (e1) 4, 471 -
Clering Balamee (B 1EE &5 19108

Capits| reeerve

Operng Balance 14573

2dded during the year 145,23
Closing Balance (T} 14523 14573
Fetained varming:

Dpening Balance i b k] +]
#dd: Profit during the year 1.75.15 02060
Mon reciproce! capital contribution made to nen wholly owned subsidiary L 154,43
Add/ [Less): Remezsrrement gain f[loss| on defined benefit plans (met of taxes) F4.73 137372
Les © Written off of Reserve created in previous year related to one subsidiary wiich has beer striked off in current year {11588

Tetal [ a4 55183 37 652 50
Less appropriation:

Dividend paid INF 2 per share [Previous year: INR 2 per share) before stoch split froem INR 10 each to N7 1 each 4% 90 &8 1T
Total appropriation (i} 45595 48t 17
Closing batance (il (i) = (@) 44,467.53 371D
Other eompreherstve income (001

Opening Balance 13543 821
£dd ; Net gaind (loss) on equity instrument on through other comprebersive income, (et of taxes) 5ig 52 (el 7%
Closing Balance (E) B50.35 135 43
Foretgn Currency Translation Reserve (F)

Opening Balance 745 03s
Add - Mowernent fr OCI (net) during the period, (net of taxes) 7.0
Liess = Written off of Reserve created in previous yeer related to ome subsidiary which hes been striked off in current year [7.400 -
Cloring Balance (F) = T.40
Employee steck opticn resene

Balance 2! the beginning of the year Z =
#dd: Employee stock aphon expems 267.7E

Cloting balance (G} 267.72

Capital redemgtion reserve (refer note 18 (e])

Opering balence - -
Agdition 4,40
Clesing balance (H) 4,40 5

75.580.08 SE 134 5

Total (&) « (B) + (€] + (D) + {E] + {F) = {G)+ (H}

mdmmum-mmwmpmmunprtmiurr..Muerfurnsnofwmwise.ammwwwugﬂsaumdﬂmmnﬁmmmmmmmurzmerredm-s.ecmwm__-e--_s.a-,-m preuT =
\smed 1o record the excess of the 2mount received over the face value of the shares. This reserve will be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

General reserve: General neserve is created from time Lo time by way of transfer profits from retained eamings for appropriation purposes. General recerve t created by a transfer from ane component o equiny to another and 3 not 2 tem o
other comprehensive INCDME. -

Cagpizal reserve: The capits! reserve represents the excess of the Group's interest in the acquires's ientifiable aset, liahilities and contingent iabilities over the purchase consideration.
I.luintdumtrﬁ:ﬁ:uimdliﬂ'lngﬂmmwmp1n!b;5m&ﬁ!dh:ncﬁb{ﬂelnflzmlUulwmmf.b!l‘dmdlnstlenznr_ufFmﬁ;wunmm“mumhnmh“mm“m\b _—
pmnlmmm:nwgmmmzuﬁMIdisr.ribu.rﬂmmdctoﬁeﬂmlnlﬂm. et
Dividend: The Boar of Directors of the Group has paic & dividend of INR 2 per share (previous year INR 2 per shares) @mounting Lo INR 435,30 Lakis (previous year INR 485,17 Lakn) for the year ended March 31, 2022 for each share with face
velue of INE 10 each. The distribution has been in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. From April 01, 2021, the domestic Company & et required to pey dividend distribution t2x on e ameunt declared, datmbies
or paid 2 dhvisend. Dividends paid by the Group to fis shareholders were subjected to withholding tax as applicable.

Dther comprehersive income (OC)): Other comprehensive income includes net gain / (lasz) on equity instrument through other comprehe mive income.
ngﬁmm:'l‘hzGm:poﬂmBOPmderwhi:hnpﬁursmmmefurwﬁrwp'nmlmnbtenlrmudmcem!ntwmlrdumrwunLﬂnmmdmnun' reserve B wmed to recognne the vale of

eguity settled stare besed payments provided as part of the ESOF scheme.
Capita! redemption reserve: The Companies Act, 2013 requires thet when 2 Group purchases its own sheres out of free reservis of securities premium account, & S equal W the Aoming| value of the shares s puichassss shall be transtermec o 2
capital redemption reserve. The reserve i utilised in accordance with the provisions of Section &9 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Foretgn Currency Tramslition represents amount of foreign g..urrénqr translations on the foreign operations of the Growp.
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Neten fe Comuetated Vinantal Statements fer the yeat eaded March 11, 2005
Al Rmaonts dn INS il b, unless of et sated)

WNote 0 Refrewinge

Pacteoularn . haat Azl
[ pp— e ——— . March 313031 Warch 31, 3031
Nen-utrent hertewing
Securer
Terr
froem hank (Befe: note (2} 1. fa) and [b] belon ) 410844 LIETES
Froe othen [Refer note (411, [C) below) . 2N
ERLLR ) 1.470.%¢
Current barrowing
Secured
Lears repayable on demand from bank
Cosh crechit {Refer aote 3 below ) PR 4,001.1%
Oehet term loant
Bark Overdraft [Refer note 3 below) 1555
Short berm loam against fioed deposits (Refer note 3 below ) 1,400 00 0w
Lurrent meturities of long term borrowings  (Refer note & and B below) 161000 &1 %7
Unsecured
Loar: repayabie on demand frem bank
Worlang capital demanc lnan (Refer note 4 below] 7.700.00 1,000 00
Fackang credit limmi? (Refer point 4 below) . 1,000.00
10,017.24 7.1%4 87
Total 1411168 (RS
4] Borrowings Include:
U, Term koan frem bank
{#) Term koans from SEand HDFC
Term lnan from State Bank of Indiz (3517 & secured by fist charpe by way of equitable mortgage of fmmovable fnclamial property e, land and bullding (cometruction thersn) situated at Bichtal Industrial Ares, Bikaner and, RICT Industral

Area, Karmi (Extersion), Bikaner in the name of the Company, and hypothecation of plant ans machinery at RICO hdustrisl Ares, Kami (Extension), Bikaner i hypothecetion of plant & machinery at Yillage Dorniahera Bhatiajan, Moramadanod.
Kamrup, Assam, . Interest i charged in the range of 7.40% to B.60%.

Term loan taken by subtidisry has interest of 7.40% p.a. for the year ended March 31, 2074 and i scured a5 follows:

Primary security: Hypothecation over stecke, recetvables and plan! and machinery, and

Collateral security: Fixed deposit of INR 25 lakh:

During the year ended March 31, 2021, term Loan from HIFC Bank Limited i secured by way of exclisive charge on Plant & Machinery situated at Karni Industrie? Area, Bikaner. Interest & charged at floating rate [interest rate rangss of EMEE
5.655).

b} Term boan from Citd Bank

Term lean from Ciri bank & taken by the subsidiary Company on which interest & '5,35% poa. for the year ended March 31, 2017 and warch 31, 2021, This loan ks secured by ey of first charge on moveable fed amets (Flant ane mastnery]

i} Wehicle Loan .
Vehicle loan relste to vehicle purchased under finanding aTangements with financial institution are secured by way of hypotiecetion of the vehicle. Interest i charged at 9.85% far bhe year ended Marsh 11, 2020 and March 21, 2021

1 Cash Crecht
Cash crediz lpan & ohtzimed from 551 ard Citi Banke Interest s charped at 7.40% and 4. 75%. respectively.
Cash credit froen SB| is secured by hypothecatien of steck of rew material, packing material and book deb b while cash oredit loan from Citi bank & unsecured. These are repayable on demand.

1. Short term lean asinet Foxed depost B Bank Overdraf:
_ Short term Loen has been availed from SB1 on which interest & charped at 4.1 % p.a. (Previows year: 5005 pua). It secured by Fixed Deporit B the perisd of loen should rat exzeed the period of fooed depost.
. Bank overdra't facility hes been svailed from HDFC Bank on which intenest & charped at 45 pa. [Previoos year: ML 1 s secured by Fied Deposit B the period of loan should not exceed the period of fieed depasit.

4, Working Captzal Demand Loan E Packing Credit Limit
‘Working Capttal Demand Loan and pre shipment or post shipment export Uirrit mre ursecured at 4.75% p.a.for the year ended March 31, 2002 ane March 14, 2021, which are repayble on demand. Workdng capital loan taken by Subsidiary Commm

on whiich interest & 5, 35% poa. for the period ended March 31, 2022, The lean & secured by way of first charge over inventory and receivabies.

5. Guarantees by Directors
Abewe mentioned term loan and ceh eredit loans from S5 are further guaranteed of certein directons! prometers of the Parent Company.

) Terme of repayment.

March 31, 2022
Ne. of Instalments ooy
Particulars eutstanding t
Term loare from bank [refer point A{11(#)ii] ebove | 1500 42,00 Morthiy
Term loans from bank [refer point 41Halli) abeve) 45.00 37.05 wenthly
Term lsans from bank [refer point A[1){a)lfi above| m 208.33 & month moratorivm & 12 Quarterly rstalmencs
16.00 62,50 16 equal quartery nstalments pest 12 montts morstonim, t be from
Term loans from bark (refer point ATT)(a)i) above) $515 ot Frim the duts o o, iz
Short term loan 2ceinst Fied depesit B Bank Overdra’t 100 1,415.55 Commensurate with maturicy of underlying deposits incer ben
) 16.00 43.75 16 equal quarterly frstalments post 12 months moratorium, to b serviced from
Term Ioars from bank [refer paint ALTHa)(i] ebove] 15th month from the date of drawdown.
Vehiele Laan® B0 1.7 Monthly and INF 50 sk & single pavment thereafter
March 31, 2021
Ha. of Instalments
Particulars mtstanding Instalment amount Repaymen:
Thort 1 Loan apainet (e deporty 1.00 47,00 Commensurats with matunty of underiying depesits unoer ben
Term lsens frem bani 13.00 125.00 Quarterly
Term loem from bank 16.00 62.5) Quarterly
Vemicle Loan’ 20.00 1,73 bonthly and IMR 50 lakke a5 ongue peyment thereaftsr
“In cese of above weticle loen, instalments are Equalised Monthly Instalments and include interest
mote 21: Prowisions
s s ar
Partculars March 31, 2022 March 31, 22
Men-curtent provisiomn
Provision for emplopes benefiss
. Gratuity LR 19194
Total 1354 191. 9%
Current provisorns
Proviston for employes benefits
. Grawdty LRS 115 84
. Compersated absence: LIRS 19,04
Others
provision for sales tax babitmy * 1 15.00 15.00
Total 17414 FTTRT]
Total ,.’) 18785 FIING]
it of s bes tax Haddfity . I
e — n Asat Asat
Farticulars [ 1 ANER | @ March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Dpeeraing balarce \ 1500 [
Cieming Balance 1400 15.00

perizin to provisian made towards sales W on branded nambeen case against the Parent Comaany. Refer note 37 (8) for deteils
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'haii Foods Inter nationn| Limited

ales to Consolidated Financial Statemente for the year ended March 31, 2022
(AL amounts in INR lakhs, unless othorwise stated)

Note 22: Deferred tax liability (net)

In compliance of Ind 45 12 “Income Tax " the Group has recognised the deferred tax liability' major components

are as follows:

Reconciliation of Deferred tax liability (net):

of deferred tax asere and liabilities on account of timing differences

Particulars As at C asa
— = o March 31, 2027 March 31, 2021
Opening Balance T el T BEEAT
Tax Expense f (income) during the year recognised in the statement of profit and lose 14114 1119.77)
Tax expense f (income) during the year recognised in other comprehensive income 200.97 (155,68
Closing Balance 3,274.52 2,932.39
_Movement during the year ended March 31,2022
Recognised HrWRemgnised H{rr?u:di_ -
Particulars April 1, 2021 in Profit and loss Inother comprehensive March 31, 2022
o statement income

Deferred tax (asset ] liability in relation to : T = = T e

Property, plant and equipments 3,294.60 239,93 - 3,534.53
Items allowed on payment basis . (218.92) (65.62) - (285.54)
Fair value adjustments on investments [64.39) (42.55) 176,54 65,40
Remeasurement (loss) on defined benefit plan (78.90) 10.40 24.43 (44.07)
Net deterred tax Hability 2,932.39 141.16 200,97 3,274.52
Movement during the year ended March 3 1,2021

Recognised /(reversed) Recognised /{reversed)
Particulars April 1, 2020 in Profit and loss in other comprehensive March 31, 2021
statement income

Deferred tax (asset Jliability in relation te -

Property, plant and equipments 3,169.87 124.73 . 3.294.40
Items allowed on payment basis 65.11 (285.40) 2.37 (218.92)
Fair value adjustments on investmente 247,44 {21.33) (285.50) (64.39)
Remeasurement (loss) on defined benefit plan (129.58) 63.23 (12.55) (78.50)
Net deferred tax liability 3,347.84 (119.77) (255.88) 1,932.35
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

Year ended Year ended

Rarticiinrt March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(2) Income tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Current tax

Current tax on profit for the year 2,757.29 3,097.52
Totz! current tax expense (A) 2,757.2% 3,097.53
Deferred tax

Deferred tax charze/(benefit) 14116 (119.77)
Total deferred tax credit (E) 141.16 1115.77)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (A) + (B) 2,898.45 1.977.76
(b) OCI Section - Income tax related to ftems recognised in OCI during in the year:

Tax impact on net (loss)/ gain on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (200.97) 198 04
Income tax (charged)/ benefit recoanised to OCI (200.97) 29804
(c} Reconciliztion of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company’s tax

rate:

Profit before tax 10,501.26 1o
Income tax rate 1517% 25.17%
Amount of tax at Company's tax rate (A) 2,642.9¢8 3,022.98
Adjustment

Loss /(gain) of subsidany® ERERY (260.23)
CSR expenditure 15044 183.25
Charity and donation a7 61,90
Others 395,38 (154,50
Total adjustment 1,015.97 (179.68)
Incoime tax rate 25.17% 25,173
Tax impact of adjustment (B) 255.50 (45.22)
Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss (A}+(B) 2,898.4¢ 297776




Bikaii Foods Internationa! Limitr

Kotes 1o Comolidated Financial Sstatements for the year ended March 31, 2027
(Al amaunts in INg lakhs, unless ptherwise stated)

Note 23 Trade payables

Farticulars o As at As at
_— e —— — — e = March 22 r Fi
Total cutstanding dues of micro ente rprises and small enterprises frefer footnote | - ——March 31, 2022 e LGP 20:1 Ty
Totat outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and emall enterprises 3 Berizs 3 ?;E :
Total 41405 ,735.41
4,281 14 4,245 9¢

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settied in 0 to 30 days terms

Footnote: Details of amounts outstanding to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 1004
This information as required under the Micro, Smazll and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 7004 has bee

1 determined to the extent surch parties have been identified or th
T8 Wfumelion cnmmny: pa A T idertified o the ba

=it af information

Particulars ks at A at
: March 31, 2022 March 312071

The principal amount and the interect due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of cach financal year - included in trade IS 510 50
payable
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each financial yesr - included in crediters 10577
for capital poods (Refer note 24)
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises.
Interest due on above
The ameunt of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each financial year
The amount of interest dise and payable for the peried of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appainted day during
the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each financial year - included in creditors for capitz| goods (Refer note 24) 0.38 0o
The amount of further interest remaining due and paymble even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as abave are 240 .1
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 13 of the M3MED Act, 200
wcluded in creditors for capital goods (Refer note 24)
Ageing of trade pavables as at March 31, 2027
Particulars Outstanding for following period: from due date of payment

Hot Due  Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 1 years Total
Undisputed dues - total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 453,79 411,18 .85 1.44 BET 28
Undisputed dues - total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and  1,450.28 1,302.76 102,70 7.93 0.60 1,854 77
small enterprises

1,904.07 1,713.94  101.55 9.37 0.80 3.731.%3
4dd: Unbilled dues 4731
Total trade payable 4,737 34
Ageing of trade payables as at March 31, 2021
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of pavment

Not Due  Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed dues - total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprise: 410.07 8357 - 14.91 510.5s
Ungisputed dues - total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and  2,006.09 1,415.37 63.97 5.15 0.48 345106
small enterprises

1,416.16 1,50054  83.57 20,06 0.485 4,000 8
Add: Unbilled dues E-l:i.:f
Totz! trade payable 4,243 9

~--Space intentionzlly left blank...-




Rika i Foods International Limited

Notes to Coneolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(AT amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

_N_ntr 24: Other fimancial liabilities

As at As at
Cartienlary March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
(Unsecured unless otherwise stated)
Accrued employers liabilities 551.E3 785.54
Book pverdraft & 077 512.08
Creditors for capital goods 1,157.60 B5d.54
Trade deposits from customers 16148 150.78
Interest payable on borrowings 36.26 13.42
Total 7,669.89 2,310.37
# This represent amounts of chegues issued in excess of balances in certain bank accounts, which were presented for payment by parties subsequent to the year end.
Note 25; Current tax liabilities (net)
Particulars Axat heRs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Income tax provision (net of advance tax INR Wil (Previous year: INR 2097.58 lakhs)) 99714
. §97.14
Note 26: Other liabilities
Current
Particulars Al st
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Statutory dues Ti7.06 454 0
Contract liabilities 675,40 £15.00
Accounting for refund hiabilities # BD.59 63.835
Unspent grant liability® - 43.58
Deferred grant income 710 7726
Total 1,514.55 1,117.7%
Non Current
Az at As at
Particelars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred grant income 142.08 11242
142.08 12542

Total

# The Group has recognised a refund liability for sale of goods on which Group does not expect to receive consideration. The costs to recover the products are cost to the Group

because the customers usuzlly return the product which are not in saleable condition.
* Represents amount of government grant received by the Subsidiary Company in advance of fullfillment of recognition conditions fer setting up of 2 new unit for procass

snack products at Indiz Food Park.




Bikajf Foods International Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Al amounts {n INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 27: Revenue from operations

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Sale - food products
Finished goods 1,54,460,87 1,27,363.87
Traded goods 5,237.74 3,224.89
Raw material 524,18 102.20
Packing material 5.96 =
Sale of services 578,03 124.68
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 199,32 145.79
Consultancy income 1.86 0.37
Government grants
Export benefits® 88.18 113.11
TOTAL 1,61,096.14 1,31,074.91
*Export benefits are government grants and include following:
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Merchandise Exports from India Scheme (MEIS) - 104,21
Duty free import authorisation scheme (DFIA) 46,39 %
Remission of Duties and Taxes on Exported Products (RoDTEP) 41.79 8.90
Total BB.18 113.11
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these benefits,
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price for sale of foods products:
Year ended Year ended
Panan March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Sale - food products 1,66,655.34 1,36,983.38
Adjustments for refund liabilities (18.09) (62.87)
Discount and rebates (6,408.50) (6,229.55)
Revenue from sale of food products 1,60,228.75 1,30,690.96
The table below represents summary of contract assets and liabilities relating to contract with customers:
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Receivables (Refer note 13) 7,330.56 4,730.88
Contract liabilities (Refer note 26) 679.40 519.00
Note 28: Other income
. Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Interest income
- Bank deposits 750.81 630.91
- On loans and investment 67.81 5490
- Income tax refund 3 0.70
- Others 8.98 15.09
Other non-operating income
Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required 157.62 375.47
Excess provision written back of slow moving inventory 20.97 *
Operating lease liabilities written back on modification - 45.97
Amortisation of deferred grant income 27.10 2.56
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment > 0.02
Net Gain on financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 3.48 1.37
Gain on |ease modification 12.19 4.47
Foreign exchange fluctuation gain (net) - 14.81
1,048.96 1,146.22

TOTAL




Bikaji Foads International Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

|Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 28: Cost of materials consumed

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Raw material
Inventory at the beginning of the year 1,974.70 1,293.47
Add: Acquired through business combination . 0.02
Add: Purchases during the year 96,225.92 76,740.50
98,200.67 78,033.69
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 4,383.80 1,974.70
Cost of raw material consumed (A} 95,816.82 76,058.9%
Packing matenial
Inventory at the beginning of the year 2,574, 44 1,704.34
Add: Acquired through business combination S E.B1
Add: Purchases during the year 18,010.06 15,728.00
20,584.50 17,441.15
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 2,797.27 1,574 44
Cost of packing material consumed (B) 17,787.23 14, 866,71
TOTAL (A)+(B) 113,604.05 90,925.70
Note 30: Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Inventory at the beginning of the year BET.GE 536,28
Less: Inventory at the end of the yvear 1,770.35 BE7.9%
Changes in inventories of finished good: and stock in trade (8B2.37) (351.70)
Note 31: Employee benefits expense
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances 7.786.41 £,165.72
Contribution to provident and other funds [refer note 35 (a)] 511.90 360.55
Gratuity expense [refer note 35 (b)] 162.55 2131.67
Workmen and staff welfare expenses 248.14 276.84
Share based payment expense 87,78 E
TOTAL 9,006.78 6,987.51
Note 32: Depreciation, amertisation and impairment expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2024
Depreciation of property, plant and equipments (refer note 3) 3,521.07 310245
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 6) 123.13 37.56
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (refer note 39) 262.52 57.46
Less: Amortisation of right-of-use assets capitalised during the year (96.05) .
Impairment of property, plant and equipments (refer note 44} 22.50 112,48
3,833.11 3,311.8¢

TOTAL




Bikafi Foods International Limited

Notes te Consalidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Al amounts in INK lakhe, unless otherwise stated)

Note 33: Finance costs

Farticulars

Year ended
March 31, 1022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Interest cost on

- Bortowings (refer note 20) 677.05 283,41
Less: Interest capitalised during the year (63.24) =

- Statutory dues 51 1.10

-on dues to Micro and Small enterprises 0.38 s

- Lease liabilities (refer note 39) 128.79 14,96

Less: Interest on lease liabilities capitalised during the year (73.10) -

- Others 0.67 .
TOTAL 669.05 299.45%
Note 34: Other expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended

Mareh 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Power and fuel 4,975,55 3,571.81
Job work charges 1,451.18 1,191.66
Store and spares consumed 539.37 55£.93
Brokerage and commission 150.20 92.80
Laboratory expenses 45.22 26.9E
Repair and maintenance
Building 203.86 295.47
Plant and machinery 434.98 326.72
Others 95.82 59.71
Advertisement expenses 2,913.00 3,063.78
Sales promotion expenses 919,01 64972
Freight and forwarding charges 6,083.50 3,832.1%
Rent L vy i1 58.41
Rates and taxes 196.71 199.09
Insurance expenses 124.63 99.55
Legal and professional charges 680,14 im.73
License/ membership and trade mark expenses 73.17 22,60
Payment to auditors [refer note 34 (2)] 4583 3827
Travelling and boarding/ lodging expenses 636.46 345,95
Charity and donation 37.17 £1.90
CSR expenses [refer note 34 (b)] 190.44 183.22
Loss on sales of property, plant and equipments 1.03 7.55
Bank charges 56.33 .01
Sitting fees 26.83 -
Bad debts/ advances written off 42,69 4.60
Provision for doubtful debts (refer note 13) 36.97 52.47
Fair value adjustment on Investment (refer note 7) 353.82 115.00
Security deposit written off 20.00 -
Provision for slow moving inventory . 112.86
Foreign exchange loss, net 6.86 -
Miscellaneous expenses T20.77 64182
TOTAL 21,106.29 15,521.43
MNote 34 (2): Payment to auditors
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
- As auditor
Statutory audit fees 36.30 0.22
Tax audit fees .0 7.03
- In other capacity
Certification & other services * i3 302
Reimbursement of expenses 4.00 3.00
4583 .27

TOTAL

= Excludes PO related expenses INR 118.30 lakhs (Previous year: Nil) disclosed in note 16,
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Bikaji Fonds International Limited

Notes to Concolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unles: otherwise stated)

Note 34 (b): Details of corporate social responsibility as per Section 135 (5) of act and rules made thereunder:

As per provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies Amendment Act, 2019, the Parent Company has to spent at least 23 of the average profits of the
Accordingly, a CSR committee has been formed for camying out the 58 activities as per Schedule Vit of the Companies Act, 2013 -

Partlctiere Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
SR amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Comnpanies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VIl 175.26 147.30
Amount spent during the year on
(i) Construction/ acquisition of an asset
{ii) On purpose other than (i) above 190.44 1€83.25
Shortfall 2t the end of the year . .
TOTAL 150.44 183,15
Nature of CSR activities undertaken during the current year: Year ended
March 31, 2037
Health Care & Medical Facilities 124,94
Environment Sustainability 10.00
Social Awareness 22.00
Educational & Support Facilities 13.57
Total 190,44
Note 34 [c): Earmnings per share
Paiticuians Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Net profit after tax attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company 7,795.15 9,020.60
Weighted average number of equity share (at adjusted face value of INR 1 per share) (Refer footnote i) 2,474.33 2,4311.13
Potential equity shares under ESOP scheme (Nos. in lakhs) 3.89 g
Weighed average number of dilutive equity shares 2,478.22 2,4311.22
Basic earnings per share 3.15 37
Dilutive eamings per share 3.15 7
1.00 1.00

Face value per equity share (adjusted) (Refer footnote i)

Footnote i: The Parent Company eff
Group in meeting dated September 2, 2021 and by t

were also adjusted as 2 result of the stock split. All earnings per share related amounts in the consolidate
adjusted for all periods presented to give effect to this stock split.

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the p
during the year.

Diluted EPS
weichted average number of equity shares that would

----Space intentionally left blank----

ected a ten-for-one stock split of the Equity share of the Parent Company. The stock split was approved by the board of directors of the
he shareholders in extraordinary general meeting on October 22, 2021. The face value and authorized shares of Equity shares
d financial statements and notes thereto have been retrospectively

rofit for the period attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the
be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.
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Note 35: Emplayee benefits obligations

{a) Defined contribution plans

i. Provident fund and other fund

The Group makes contribution towards employee's provident fund, employee's state insurance plan scheme and labour welfare fun,
specified percentage of payroll cost, as specified in the rules of the schemes. to these defined contribution schemes,

Provident fund, employee’s state insurance plan scheme and labour welfare fund fs a defined cantribution scheme established under a state plan. The contributions to the scheme are charged to the
statement of profit and loss in the period when the contributions to the funds are due.

d. Under the schemes, the Group fs required to contribute a

The Group has recognised following amounts as expense in the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars D Year ended
B v e o —_— March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
Included in contribution to provident and ot er funds {refer note 31) — I -
Employees” state insurance plan 131,90 122,14
Provident fund 17993 218 84
Labour welfare fund 0.01 r

(b) Defined benefit plan: Gratuity

The Parent Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity scheme of a
India. The funding to the scheme is done through policy taken with Life Insurance Co

directors of the Company who has completed a minimum a five years service
lakhs. The disclosures as required pursuant to the Ind AS 19 is as under:

(i) Net employee benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Year ended Year ended
Particul,
= — March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Service cost = . T 169,69 199.43
HNet interest cost 11.B4 34,54
Past Service Cost [126,49) (339.78)
Total defined benefit cost included in profit and loss 66.06 (105.79)
Classified as:
Other income (126.49) 1339.76)
Employee benefit expense 197.55 233.97
{ii} Current/ non-current bifurcation
As at As at

Paticitars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current 171.39 115.63
Hor-current 13.54 192.00
Met liability recognised in the balance sheet 184.93 307.63
(i) Net employee benefit expenses recognised in other comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
ParticOlar March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive Income (0C1) {100.36) 49.87
(iv) Key financial assumptions used at the end of the year

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Ditcount rate 6.81% - 7,48 6.82% - 7.07%
Salary escalation rate 10.00% 10.00%
Expected return on plan assets 6.82% 6.61%
(v) Actual return on plan asset

Year ended Year enced
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest income on plan assets 3308 21,42
Remeasurements on plan assets 2.13) .09

Actual return on plan as

30.85 20.33
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it nfnnl\-q‘ 0!_'!!101'\1: recognised in other comprehensive (incomelf loss at the end of the year

Particulars Year ended Year ended
TAmount rec March 11, 2022 March 31, 2021
oghised fn OCI, beginning of the year 711,58 163.71
Remeasurements due to: -
Eftect of change in financial assumptions 0.23) 58.12
Effect of change in demographic assumptions (25.96) 32.36
Effect of experience adjustments (76.40) (41.70)
Retum on plan assets (excluding interest) 223 1.09
Total remeasurements recognised in 0CI (100.36) 49.87
Amount recognised in OCI, end of the year 113.22 213.58
(vil) Change In defined benefit obligation during the year
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Defined benefit obligation, beginning of the year 792.71 811.97
Addition through business combination 9.0
Service cost 169 69 199.43
Interest cost 55.94 55.96
Actuarial losses
a. Fffect of change in financial assumptions 10.23) 58.12
b. Effect of change in demographic assumptions (25.96) 3736
. Experience (gain) / losses (76.40) 141.70)
Benefits paid from fund (0.85) (4.74)
Past service cost (126.49) [339.75)
Defined benefit obligation, end of the year TBB.43 792.73
(viii) Change in fair value of plan assets during the year
Particulars Yowrended Toar anced
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the year AB85.10 324,06
Interest income 33.08 1.4
Contributions 88.40 145 45
Actuanial (losses) (2.23) (1.09)
Benefits paid from fund (0.85) 4.74)
Fair value of plan assets, end of the year 603.50 485.10
(ix) Reconciliation of balance sheet (Net) amount
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance sheet liability, beginning of the year 307.63 4999
Total charge recognised in profit and loss (net) 66.06 (105.79)
Total remeasurements recognised in OCI (100.36) 4987
Contribution during the year (88.40) 1145.45)
Addition through business combination - 5.09
Balance sheet liability (Net), end of the year 184.93 3I07.63
(x) The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows :
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Insurer managed fund 100.00% 100.00%

Investment fund are managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) is further invested in equity and debts markets in pre-determined ratio to balance market risk, interest rate risk, t risk

and concentration risk.

(xi) Demographic assumptions used to determine the defined benefit

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Withdrawal rate 10% - 254 5% - 20%
Mortality rate IALMA2012-14) Ultimate ALM(2012-14) Ultimate
Retirement age 60 Years &0 Years
(xil) Expected maturities of defined benefit obligation

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Within 1 year 177.13 119.49
Between 1 and 7 year 138.02 127
Between 2 and 3 year 121336 11418
Between 3 and 4 year 108.06 104.55
Between 4 and 5 year 100.89 95.87
Beyand 5 years 299.81 133.87

(xiii) Employers best estimate of contribution to defined benefit plan (gratuity) for next reporting perfod is INR 303,13 lakhs (previous year 484.90)

(xiv]. The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation Is 6,88 years for holidng company and 15,50 for subsidiary company.
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Rl ‘-hllll'llv‘lty analysis

l"_gmcuhn

Defined benefiy obligation (discount rate « 100 basis points)
Defined benefit obligation (discount rate - 100 basis points)
Defined benefit obligation (salary escalation rate + 100 basis points)
Defined benefit obligation {salary escalation rate - 100 basis paints)

Description of risk exposures
Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time.

1) Salary increases: Actual salary increases will increase the plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate

As at

As at
= o March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
 (6.s6) 37.13)
40.69 41.15
41.03 41.41
(39.28) (39.58)

As such Group 1s exposed to various risks as follow:

in future val

1§ Investment risk: If plan is furded then assels liabilities mismatch and actual investment ret
i) Discount rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent
i) Mortality and disability: Actual deaths and disabili
V) Withdrawals:

valuations can increase the plan’s liability,

um an assets lower than the discount ral

will also increase the liability,

ty cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the Habilities,
Actual withdrawal proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal

rates at subsequent valuations can impact plan's Tiability,

Sensitivity in repsect of expected return on plan assets, mortality and disability rates and withdrawal rates are immaterial.

Note 36: Related party disclosures

The list of related parties as identified by the Management is as under-

te assumed at the last valuation date can impact the labiiity.

Relationship

Hame of related party

Shiv Ratan Agarwal (Whole time director | (w.e.{. September 1, 2021)
|(Managing Director) [till August 31, 2021)

Deepak Agarwal (Managing Director) (w.e.f, September 1, 2021)
(Director) {till August 31, 2021}

Sus}!i_l;l‘)eui Agarwal (Director) (till Asgust 31, 2'0‘2;_!

|

=
Shweta Agarwal (Director) |
TR pmncL ) shambhu Dayal Gupta (Chief Financial Officer) i
(till November 15, 2021) (General Manager-Corpoarte affairs and Finance) | From
MNovember 16, 2021) )
Rishabh Jain (Chief Financial Officer) (w.e.f. November 16, 2021)
Mano] Verma (Chief Dperating Officer) (w.e.{. June 01, 2021)
m_'vﬁ'u;varﬁ {Company Secretary)
Shiv Ratan Agarwal HUF
Deepak Kumar Agarwal HUF
Members of Thadiram Shiv Dayal HUF |
Relatives of Key Managerial Personnels (KMPs) % i‘::::";;m ;
Ankit Khandelwal |
Priyanka Jain (W.e.f. November 16, 2021} _;
Indra Devi Gupta |
i Limi
Entities under control of Key Managerial Personnels (Kmps) ::::;“;::;:‘:::;:::t; L
Entities under significant influence of Key M jal Per 1s (KMPs} Hanuman Agro Food Private Limited
Babaji Snacks Private Limited
Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limited
Entities under control of relatives of Key Managerial Personnels (KMPs) Haldi Ram Froducts Private Urmited
Haldiram Snacks Private Limited
5. M. Foods Engineering Private Limited
Entities under significant influence of relatives of Key Managerial Personnels (KMPs) Haldiram Foods International Private Limited
Dam Industries India Private Limited
{a) Key managerial personnel compensation e e
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Short-term benefits® 11340 897 79
19.42 E
Share based payment
Total compensation 1,154.14 897.79
As at As at
{b) Key managerial personnel's payable March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Accrued employees labilities 63.42 16 88

* Excluding provision for pust—emplw / gratuity as a separate actuarial valuation is not available,
— i}
e / o,
#

e
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(B Transactions with related parties

The tollowing transactions occurred with relnted partfes (including GST. I any):

Particulare

Year ended
March 11, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Sale of Goods A Services
Entities under control of KiPy
Masthin ¥ oods Private Limited
Basant Vitkat Hotel Private Limited

Entities under significant Influence of KMPy
Hanuman Agro Food Private Limited

Entities under control of relatives of KMPs
Baba ji Snacks Private Limited

Haldi Ram Products Private Limited
Haldiram Snacks Private Limited

Relatives of KMPs
Members of Thadiram Shiv Dayal HUF

Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments

Entities under control of relatives of KMPs
Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limited

Entities under significant influence of relatives of KMPs
5. M. Foods Engineering Private Limited

Purchase of Goods & Services

Entities under control of KMPs
Basant Vihar Hotel Private Limited

Entities under control of relatives of KMPs
Haldiram Snacks Private Limited

Entities under significant influence of relatives of KMPs
5. M. Foods Engineering Private Limited

Oam Industries India Private Limited

Haldiram Foods Intermational Private Limited

Dividend

Key Managerial Personnels (KMPs )
Shiv Ratan Agarwal HUF

Deepak Kumar Agarwal HUF

Loan given to Related Parties
Entities under control of relatives of KMPs
Haldi Ram Products Private Limited

Amount received back from Related Parties
Entities under control of relatives of KMPs
Haldi Ram Products Private Limited

Interest income on loan given to related parties
Entities under control of relatives of KMPs
Haldi Ram Products Private Limited

Investments

Entities under significant influence of KMPs:

Hanuman Agro Foods Private Limited

Investment in Compulsory Convertible Debentures {CCD)

Advance against investment in Compulsarily Convertible Debentiures (CCD)

Compensation to Related Parties
Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel
Pawan Kumar Saraf

Ankit Khandelwal

Indra Devi Gupta

Manju Devi Saraf

Legal and professional
Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel
Priyanka Jain

Rent paid
Key managerial Personnel
Shiv Ratan Agarwal
Deepak Agarwal
Sushila Devi Agarwal | f ¥ /

/ * frme

137.04
6,55

T8.85

197.60
41.47

1,154.41

2953

25.99

307.24

152.86

107.45
4.08
1,619.15

166,63
122.41
0.03

4,355
200.00

6.00
6.73

6.00

1.1

.36
7.0
.84

9.09

1,547.97

128.21
468.45

126
4.47
1,188 32

268.07
122.41
0.03

2,250.00

2,250.00

3,103.00

6.00
5.12
4.69
6.00

9.36
1.20
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Lown taken from Related Parties
Key Managerial Personnel
Shiy Ratan Agaiwnl

Derpab Agarwal

Loan repaid to Related Parties
key Managerial Personnel

Shiv Ratan Agarwal

Deepak Agarwal

Employee advance given to Related Parties
Key Managerial Personnel
Shambhu Dayal Gupta

Expenset pald on behall of Company
Key Managerial Personnel
Deepak Agarwal

Reimbursement of expenses paid by Related Party on behalf of Company
ey Managerial Personnel
Deepak Agarwal

Reimbursement of expenses paid on behalf of Related Party
Basant Vihar Hotel Private Limited

Expenses incurred on behalf of related parties
Entities under significant influence of KMPs:
Hanuman Agro Foods Private Limited

(c) Outstanding balances arising from sales/ purchases of goods and services and other transactions

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties:

150.00
16%.00

150.00
245.00

8.00

31.97

14.86

3.80

1.80

Particulars

As at
Mareh 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Accounts Payables:

Entities under control of relatives of KMPs
Haldiram Snacks Private Limited

Entities under significant influence of relatives of KMPs
Oam Industries India Private Limited
Haldiram Foods International Private Limited

Entities under control of KMPs
Basant Vihar Hotel Private Limited

Investments:

Entities under significant influence of KMPs:

Hanuman Agro Foods Private Limited

Investment in Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) fair value through OCI of Hanuman Agro Foods
Private Limited

Investment in Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCD) fair value through profit and loss of Hanuman Agro
Foods Private Limited

Advances to Vendors:

Entities under significant influence of relatives of KMPs
5. M. Foods Engineering Private Limited

Accounts Receivables:

Relatives of KMPs
Members of Thadiram Shiv Dayal HUF

Entities under control of KMPs
Mastkin Foods Private Limited

Entities under significant influence of KMPs
Hanuman Agro Foods Private Limited

Entities under control of relatives of KMPs
Haldi Ram Products Private Limited
Haldiram Snacks Private Limited

Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limited

Entities under significant influence of r

10.85

9.3

9,723

29.03

2765

7885

41.46
1.02
29.53

25.99

20.38

7.4%
70.1%

14.99

9.n

5,368.00

15.82

0.02
1.02
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Entities under significant influence of KMPs
Advance recoverable
Hanuman Agro Foods Private Limited

200,00
Amounts recoverable for expenses incurred on behalf of related parties
Hanuman Agre Foods Private Limited e
Advances to employees:
Key Managerial Personnel
Shambhu Dayal Gupta L

Motes

{a) Dutstanding balances at the year end are unsecured and all balances except investment in Optional Convertible Debentures are interest free. The Group has not recarded any impairment of
receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment fs undertaken each financial year through examining the financlal pasition of the related party and the market in which the
related party operates.

(b} No amount has been provided as doubtful debts or advances/ written off or written back in the year in respect of debts due from/ to above related parties.

{c) Key managerial personnel has given personal guarantees to lender for borrowings, Refer Note 20.

{d) Al transactions with these related parties are at arm's length basis and are in ordinary course of business. (All the amounts of transactions and halances disclosed in this nate are gross and
undiscounted )

(e) The Parent Company has provided financial support guarantee to its subsidiary (namely Petunt Food Processors Private Limited) to meet its current obligation as and when required to continue the
operation of such subsidiary company as going concern,

Note 17: Contingent liabilities and commitments

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(A} Contingent liabilities
In respect of sales tax (refer note a) 431.76 115.83
In respect of stamp duty charges (refer note b) 58.58 54.23
In respect other legal matters (refer note c| £3.35 17.20
In respect of goods and service tax (refer note d} 64.41 =

(B) Commitment
(i} Capital commitment
Estimated amount of cantracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 3,315.29 3,887 42
(net of advances)
(i} Other commitment
The Parent Company has imported capital goods under the Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme 14436
(EPCG) of the Govemment of India, at concessional rates of duty on an undertaking to fulfil quantified
exporns 475.01

(a) (i) The Parent Company moved the judicature High Court of Jodhpur challenging the jurisdiction of Assistant Commissioner Commercial Taxes, Anti Evasion, Bikaner and Jaipur who had issued the
notice for the levy of RVAT/ CST at the rate of 12.50% on the sale of branded namkeen as against 4% charged by the parent Company under sale of ‘Unbranded Namkeen'. The High Court granted stay
on the notice relating to financial year 2006-07, 2007-08 and 2008-09.

During the financial year 2018-1%, The Parent Company received notice raising total tax and interest demand of INR 68.03 lakhs and INR 85.18 lakhs for financial year 2007-08 and 1008-0%
respectively. Out of the total demand, the Parent Company has deposited INR B1.34 lakhs (including interest liability of INR 30 lakhs) during the year ended March 31, 2021. Further, the Amnesty
scheme under the RVAT providing for waiver of interest and penalty has been notified wide notification no. F. 12(29) FD/Tax/2021.269 dated February 02, 2021 and Parent Company has filled
application under RVAT for waiver of remaining interest liability which has been approved by the government. Accordingly, the said cases are closed,

(a) {ii) The Parent Company had sold goods (namkeen) to M/s Matri Stores, Assam at concessional rate of tax against Form-C amounting to INR 296.38 lakhs during the year 2011-12. CTQ had made a

cbservation vide order dated September 11, 2012 and amended order dated October 25, 2012 that Form C was not issued by authorised officer, therefore the impugned sale was not eiigible for

concessional rate of tax and issued demand of INR 91.33 lakhs including interest and penalty. The parent Company then preferred an appeal befare the appellate authority, CTO, Bikaner. Appeilate

authority sustained the demand of tax and interest but deleted the penalty of INR 47.57 lakhs. Being aggrieved and dissatisfied by the order Parent Company again preferred an appeal before

Rajasthan Tax Board, Ajmer. The Board rejected the tax and interest demand also on the basis that Form C issued was not bogus and false, Commercial tax officer, Jaipur has filed a Revision petition

before High Court on September 05, 2018. During the year ended March 31, 2021 Parent Company has received the protest amount of INR 22.00 lakhs deposited against this case. Based on the
there isa p bility that the case may be decided in favour of the Parent Company.

(b} There was an agreement for purchase of industrial plot E-578, E-579, F-580 to F-584 at Kami industrial area, Bikaner executed on the non-judicial stamp paper of INR 100/- and duly notansed oy a
notary public. It was contended by the stamping authorities that the aforesald document was required to be registered with sub-registrar, Bikaner. Subsequently stamping authornDes tssusd a nobce
demanding of INR 36.22 lakhs on January 09, 2017 on Parent Company. The High Court of Jodhpur stayed the aforesaid order dated March 22, 2017 by holding the agreement pertaining to the
purchase of industrial plots at Kami Industrial Area as a contingent agreement. The aforesaid plots were eventually vested with Hanuman Agro Foods Private Limited. Case |s pending for
hearing.Based on the management assessment, there is a possibility that the case may be decided in favour of the Parent Company.

(c) Rep the best possible estimate by the Management, basis available information, about the outcome of various claims against the Parent Company by different parties under Consumer

Protection Act and Food Safety and Standard Act. As the possible outflow of resources is dependent upon outcome of various legal processes. Based on the management assesament, there is a
possibility that the case may be decided in favour of the parent Company.

(d) Based on favourable decisions in similar cases and discussions with the consultants etc., the Subsidiray Company believes that it has good cases in respect of all the items listed above and hence
nao provision against these is considered necessary.

Others:

(a) The Parent Company has given a c te guarantee ing to INR 1,900 lakhs (previous year INR Nil) in favour of HDFC Bank limited ‘lendor on behalf of Vindhyawasini Sales Private Limited
towards term loan given by lendor for purchasing the tangible assets during the financial year ended March, 2022. The campany is in process of revocation of said Corporate guarantee in the near
future subject to fullfillment of terms & conditions of lendor.
{b) The Parent Company has been sanctioned Production Linked Incentive (“the Scheme" | amounting to INR 26,138.9 lakhs during the financial year 2021-22 by Ministry of Food Processing Industries
(MOFPI) vide approval letter dated December 03, 2021. Under the scheme, the Parent C is 1o make Of INR 43,671 B4 lakhs in eligible capital assets upto March 31, 202) directly and
through Contract manufacturing units and Subsidiaries and balance of INK 1,297 lakhs to be incurred in branding and marketing expenditure. Recently a guideling No. 11-18/3/2021 PLIS Division has
been issued by MOFP| which provides the extension in timelines upto March 31, 2024 but it has been communicated that the time extension will be available to those companies which make 800 of
total capital investment upto March 31, 2023, Therefore, the Parent Company {s committed to make such capital expenditure in the due course of time




Bikaft Foods International Limfted
Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 18: Segment reporting .
The Group primanily operates in the food products segment. The board of directors of the Group, which has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM]), evaluates the
Company's performance, allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicators of the Company as a single unit. Therefore, there is no reportable segment for the Company as

per the requirement of Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments™.
Geographical locations: The geographical segments have been considered for disclosure as the secondary segment, under which the domestic segment includes sales to customers located in India and
overseat segment includes sales to customer located outside India.
The following information discloses revenue from external eustomers based on geographical areas:
a. Revenue from external customers (Disaggregation of revenue)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 march 31, 2021
India 1,54,721.67 1,24,419.11
DOutside India 6,374.47 6,645.70
TOTAL 1,61,096 14 1,31,074.91
b. Segment revenue with major customers .
The Group has two customer (i.e. super stockists) during the year ended March 31, 2022 individually accounting for more than 10% of its sale of food products. During the year 15.04% |previous year
21,78%) of the Company's sale of food products was generated from these customers.
Note 39: Leases
The Group has taken land and building, shops, flats and godowns on operating leases. These lease arrangements range for a period between 11 months to 5 years except for land where lease D':’I‘Oﬁf is
renewable for

upto 99 years in case of Parent Company and 11 months to 15,83 years in case of one subsidiary, which include both cancellable and non-cancellable leases. Most of the leases are
further period on mutually agreeable terms. Infarmation about the leases for which the Group & a lessee is presented below:

(1) Right-of-use asset

Year ended fear ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance as at April 01, 2021 985.38 96819
Additions through business acquisitions (Refer note 48| . 1,235.28
addition during the year 1,019.74 57.21
Deletion during the year (63.44) (1,257.84)
Amartisation for the year (262.52) (37.46)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,699 16 985 38

(i} Lease liabilities

Set out below are the carmying of lease liabilities and the rr during the year:
— Year ended Year ended
b March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance as at April 01, 2021 128.08 164.77
Additions through business acquisitions (Refer note 46) - 1,469 83
Addition 1,901.86 §7.11
Deletion (63.44) {1,303.81)
accretion of interest 128.79 14.56
Payments (231.52) (310.47)
Gain on lease modification (refer note 28) 112.19) (4. 42§
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,851.58 128.08
As at As at
Pl March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current 264.83 4538
Non-current 1,586.75 82.72
Total 1,851.58 128.08
Below are the amounts recognised by the Group in statement of profit and loss
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest expense on lease liabilities 128.79 14.96
Amortisation expense for right-of-use assets 262.52 57 46
Expense relating to short term leases 92.75 58.41
Less capitalised during the year (169.15) :
hoea 314.91 130.83
Below are the amounts recognised by the Group in statement of cash flows:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Total cash outflow for leases (231.52) 1310.47)
Contractual maturities of lease labilities
Particulars / As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Hot later than 1 year o 317.56 - FIETY
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 1.221.08 “'?2
19r.37 -

More than 5 years

Extension options: o
Lease contain extension options exercisable by the Group before Uhe end of the non-cancellable contract perfod. Where practicable, the Group seeks to include extension options in new leases to

provide operational flexibility. The extension options held are exercisable only on mutual agreement. The Group assesses at lease commencement whether it Is reasonably certain to exercise the
Extension of - The Group reassess whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the options If there Is a significant event or significant change in circumstances within its control

Discount rate:
The Group has applied the weighted average incr al approach Lo o ine the incremental borrowing rate as appiicable at the time of execution of the lease agreement.
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Note 40 Fabr valyer
The management o Group msessed that
Wabsiifiies mnd other current financial limbi
eporting date, fali value and ca
curremt finan ial assets are for

camrying value of cash and cash equivalents, trade recefvables, other bank balances, loans with shart term maturity,
lithes approximates their fair value amounts largely due to short term maturities of these imstruments, Further,
mying value are mot expected to vary significantly as there has been miniminal interest rate changes since theys deposit
Perpetuity and shall be refundable on surrendering of electricity connection only, which fs highly uniikety aesd hence fair value of the same cannat be determined in absence of definite period of such
deposits. Compartson of the carrying value and fair value of the Group's Tinancial instruments are as Tollows;

Falr vilue Imtrumenty by category

othet current financial assets, botrowings, trade payable, lease
In cane of bank deposits with maturity of more than twelve months from

Carrying value Fair value Carrylng value Falr value
Particulars As at Az at A at Az at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
Financial axsets carried at amartived cost
Security depesits 1409 J4F 09 RN T 1962
Loars 1.517.4% 1,512.49 122.20 122.30
Trade recetvables 7,330.56 7,330.56 4,710,808 4,730,858
Cash and cash equivalents 150,45 29045 175.%0 175,90
Other bark balances 18,081 47 18,083.47 11,859.2% 11,859.25
Other financial assets 1,059.25 1.059.15 01,50 .50
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investment in Compulsarfly Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) fair value through OCI (FYTOCIH 1,163.20 1,163,720 “h2.97 AbE 9
Investment in Mutual-Fund fair value through profit and less (FYTPL) 104 86 104,86 101.37 101.37
Investment in equity instrument fair valus through profit and loss (FVTPL) 5.00 S.00 5.00 5.00
Investment in Compulsary Convertible Preference Shares. |CCPS| 7iv.40 739,40 1440 16,40
Investment in Computsory Comvertible Debentures (CCD) fair value through profit and less (FVTPL| 9,119.92 9,139.92 53,114.00 5.114.00
Investment in Optional Convertible Debentures (OCD] fair value through profit and lows (FYTPL) 1,482.17 1,487.17 #5000 A50.00
Comertible note . - 730,00 730.00
Total of financial assets 41,217.86 A1,217.86 24,179.09 24,179.09
Financial llabilities carried at amaortised cost
Borrowings
- Short term 10,053.50 10,051.50 7,208.10 7,208.10
- Long term A4, 105.44 4,905, 44 1,470.5 1,405
Lease liabilities 1,851.54 1,851.58 128.08 128.08
Trade payables 4,781,314 4,281.34 4,245.9% 4745 %
Trade deposits from custamens 163.48 163.48 150,78 150.78
Other current financial liabilities 2,470.15 1.470.15% 215616 1,1% 18
Total financial llabilities 12,515 49 21,925 49 15,305.64 15,105.64
T

Mote 41: Fair values hierarchy

Financlal assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial

pasition are grouped into three Levels of a falr value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant
ifplits o the measurement. as Tollows:

= Level 1: Hierarchy includes financial instruments measured wing quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for Identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.
~ bevel 2z Hierarchy Includes the fair value of financial instruments measured uting quoted prices for identical or similar asiets in markets that are not active,
= Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asvet or liability,

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for financial sssets and liabilities as at March 11 L2022

Fair valuwe measurement using
e Leve| 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Socurity depxatts - . 347.09
Losm 2 - 1,512.49
Trade recetvables : i iieatcd
Cash and cash equivalents : A 5045
Other bank balances 4 = 18.081.47
Other financial assets . ~ 1.056.25
Financial assets measured at fair value
Imvestment in Compubiorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS| fair value through OCI [FYTOCH) - = 1.163.20
Investment In sutual-Fund fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL) 104, B8 . >
Ivestmenit in equity frstrument fair value throwgh profit and loss [FYTPL) = = 5.00
Irvvestment in Compulsary Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) < g 71940
Irvestment in Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCO) fair value through profit and Loss [FYTRLE - - 9,139.92

Irvesstrment in Dptional Convertible Debentures (OCD) falr walue through profit and Loss (FYTPL) A 148247
Convertible note 2 =
Total of financial assets

104.86 - 41,113.00
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e — Fair value measurement using
Parthculars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Tiabilities carried at amortised cort
Porscwing: . : 10,053.50
St term . . 4,105, 44
- Lowg term ) 2 1,851.58
Lease [iabilities ¥ : 4,781.34
Trade payables ) . 163,48
Trade depoiits from customers . R 2.470.15
Other current financial |abilities . P 12,915 .49
Total financisl labilities
discl Tair value hierarchy for financial assets and Habilities a3 at March 31, 2021:
Fair value messurement uting
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets carried at amortised cost i i
Security deposits J950
s . 4,70 BR
Trade receivables i s in
Cash and cash equivalents ) 2 11,859.2%
Other bank balamces . Al
Dhet finarncial assets -
Financial assets measured at fair value o
Investment in Campulsorily Comvertible Preference Shares (CCPS) fair value through OC0 (FYTOCN
Investment bn Mutual-Fund fair value through prefit and loss [FYTPL) 01.37 - P
1540

Investment in equity instrument fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Investment in Campulsory Corwertible Preference Shares (CCPS) "
Investment fn Compulsary Convertible Debentures (CCD) fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL) - 5,114.00
Investment In Optional Convertible Debentures (00D fair valee through T
profit and loss (FYTPL)

Comertible note - . 730.00

Total of financial assets 10137 14,077.72
Financial labilities carried at amortised cost

- Short term = - 7.208.10

= Lang term » - 1,420.56
Lease liabflities & - 128.08
Trade payables : - 4, 745,94
Trade deposits from customers - . 150.78
Other current financial Liabilities - = 115616
Total financial liabilities - = 15, 30% 64
Assets for which fair values are disciosed as at March 31, 2022 (refer nate 5):
Particulars Fair value measurement using

Level 1 Level 2 Lewve! 3
Investment properties . 3 771470
Total - - 2.214.70
S
Assets for which fair values are disclosed as at March 11, 2021 (refer note 5):
Particulars Fair value measurement using
Level 1 Level 2 Level
Investment properties 2 m
Tatal = 2,130.80
=l = Z.130.50

Quantitative discliosures of fair value measurement hierarchy as st March 31, 2022
The Group has invested shares, CEPS, mutual Tunds, unquoted equity shares, CCD, OCD and convertible notes fair valued at year end
Quated shares and mutual funds have been valued as per market rates, NAV available for these instruments, respectively and accordingly

i ¢ v y designated as Level 1 valued instruments. CEPS, CCD been
unabeervable inputs and are Sesignated as Level 3 valued instruments. Unquoted equity shares and canvertible nates are not fafr valued at period / year ends as the Managerment expects any fair “f"'d UCD:'“" el
Instruments to be immeterial to the Consalidated financial statements and accordingly disclosed their cost as fair value, U SRS L Yl of thove

The foliowing table shows a breakdown of the total gaims (losses) iecognised in respect of Level 3 fair values:

pE e Year endea Year ended
&":'::I*‘ — ! March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
Change in fair value (realived)
Change in fair value junrealised) ; :
3. ¥
Lass included in ‘other expenses’ . 5
148 1.37
Change in falr value (realiued)
Change in fair value junrealised) :
353 82 115,00
! © comp , . 15382 115,00
Change in (air value (realised|
Change in fair value (unrealised) = 5
01 4e .
Loss in "other P o :
Change m fair value (realed)
Change In s value (unrealed)
o 1,134,279
—_— L1y
e s o T.03419

Total fair valuation gain/ {los
B daadey
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The Groagp ames the Discounted Cash Fiow valuation technique  which
FrinEments containing options (Lo parchase or redeem for

valiat i madels used by the Group reflect the contractual terms of the derivatives (including the perisd ta maturityl, and market -based parameters such as interest rates, solatility etc.These models
b iec Uty as the valuation technigues used require significant judgement and inputs thereto are unobiervable.

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 3 fair walues, s3 well a3 the significant unobservable inputs used.

involues getermination of present value of expected receipt/ payment discounted Using appropriate discounting rates prevalling in markel Further,
realisation), the fais values of derivatives are estimated by using pricing models. wherein the inputs 1o thoie modeis are based on unotrservable market parameters, The
do contain a high level of

Signicant unobservable
Inputs

Type Valuation technique

Inter-relatiomship
between key
unobiervable Inputs
and lair value
measurement

Discounted cash fiows and option pricing madel. -Risk adjusted market
The valuation medel considers the present value of the net cash llows expected Lo be generated by the Interest rate: A5
Parent Company. The cash flow projections Include spec i estimates for 5 years. The expected net [previous year B.500)
cash flows are discounted wning a risk adjusted discount rate, Terminal value (earnings post bth years till

perpeluity) has been arrived using the Gordon Growth method. Compatation of Option value of OCD as

per Black:Scholes-Merton model

ki fnerease i free cash
Hlevws Increases the
valuation on opthon, and
vice weria.

An increase in risk free
rate Increases the

oLp
valuation, and vice
weria.
An Inerease in volatiiity
af stack increase the
valuation, and vice
Tmrra
Discounted eash Mlows: The valuation model considers the present value of the debeture face value (at -Risk adjisted market 45 increase 0 risk
the time of conversion, as per terms of fssue) expected to he generated by the Parent Company, The interest rate: 8.00% adjusted market
[{4}] cash flow projection Include speciic estimates for 0.75 years (previous year: 0.58 years| . The expected (peeviaws year 505 Interest  rate  reduces
met cash Tlows are discounted using a risk adjusted drucount rate. the value of these
Inst rume s,
Met Assets Value method: Determination of thate valuation by using value of net assets method requires -Value of lemehold land As increase In value of
all assets and lLiabilttes (inclsding of(-batance sheet, intangible and contingent Hability) to be reflected -Risk adjusted market leasehold land increases
at the Book value [ replacement cost basis and to be netted off and net value arrived i the indicated as interest rate: 8.00% the wvalue of these
value of the equity. In given case, Book value representing the appropriate worth of business under the |previous year B.50%) Irstruments
CCPs prevailing conditions and facts atlsched to it As  increase  in sk
adjunted market
interest rate reducet
the walue of these
Instruments.
Sensitivity analysis of significant uncbservable input used for Level 3 measurements:
Sensitivity to fair value as at March 31, 2022
Increase % Decrease % Increase amount Decrease amount
Value of leased Land 3 1% 40.78 140,78
Discount rate used for CED (also included in valuation of COPS) A% 1% raT 137.87)
Free cash fMows 1% 1% 4720 148 %)
Valatility of stock 1% 1% 11.70 [LAR /1]
Sensitivity to fair value &s at March 31, 2021:
Increase % Decrease ¥ Increase amount Decrease amount
Value of leased land 1% -1% 34.56 134,56
Discount rate wsed for CCO (also included In valuation of CCPS) 1% 1% (5.83) 5.83
Free cash flows 2% % 2.00 (1.001
Valatility of stock 2% 1% 13.00 11300

«Space intentionally Left blank---
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Hote 42. Financial risk management

The B pHineipal Financial liabllities eomprise barrowings and trade payables, The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations. The Groups's principal financial assets include
loans, trade and other receivables amd term deposits that derive directly from its operations. The Group also hold investments measured at cast, fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL) and fair value through ather
comprehensive income [FVTOC!,

The Group’s activities expose It 1o market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Graup's board of directars has overall responsibliity for the establishment and aversight of the Groups risk management framework,
This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is expased ta and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the Consolidated Financial

(A) Market risk analysis
Market risk s the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and

other price risk. Financial imstruments affected by market risk include loans, barrowings, term deposits, and investments.

{1} Forelgn currency risk
The Group has limited international transactions and thus its exposure to foreign exchange risk arising from its operating activities [revenue and purchases denominated in foreign currency) s low. Foreign eachange
itk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the group's functional currency. To mitigate the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk,
non INR Cash Flows are monitered in accordance with the Group's risk management policies.

Foreign currency risk exposure:

As at Az at
Particulars March 31, 2012 March 31, 2021

Financlal assets

Trade receivables
- usD 13.48 B.54

Total 13 48 B.54

Financial Habilitles

Trade payahle
- usp 0.43

Total 0.43

Foreign eurrency sensitivity analysis
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company's profit before tax is due 1o changes in the
fair value of monetary assets and llabilities,

Increasef Effect on profit or loss
Particulars decrease in % As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Trade Receivables (INR)
i 2.00 120.44) 12.54

2.00 (20.44) (12.54)
Trade Payables {INR)
INR 2.00 {0.65)

2.00 10.85)

(i} Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Interest rate exposure
The Group's variable rate borrowing is subject to interest rate changes. Below is total eutstanding borrewings:

As at Az at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
‘Wariable rate bormowings 14,063 44 8,541,93
Fixed rate borrowings 59.24 73.30
Total borrowings 14,122.68 B615.13
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
Profit o Inss and equity is sensitive to higher# lower interest expense from borrawings as a resuit of changes in interest rates.
Effect on profit or loss

= dars As at As at

Artic March 31, 2022 March 31, 021
Interest rates increase by 0.5% T0.32 42
Interest rates decrease by 0.5 {1032 42.71)
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(B) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty falls to discharge its obligation 1o the Group. The Groups exposure to credit risk is Influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, trade recelvables and financial assets
]
measuted al amortised cost. The Group continuously monitars defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information Into fis eredit risk contrals
(1) Trade recelvable

Customer credit disk fe managed by the Group subject to the Group's established recefvable management policy. The policy details how credit will be managed, past due balances collected, allawances and reserves
recorded and bad debt written off. Credit terms are the established time{rame in which customers pay for purchased product. Outstanding customer receivables

are reqularly monitored by the Management
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on consolidated basis for simflar catergory of customer. The maximum exposure to cradit ik at the reparting date {5 the carrying walue of sach class of
financial assets. - ) )

The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and operate in largely independen! markets,

Mavement in expected credit |oss on trade receivables during the period:

Particulars As at Ax at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
Opening balance m.7z 537
additions through business acquisitions £ .9
Additions 36,97 51 47
Closing balance 14869 114.72

{1f) Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group's treasury department in accordance with the Graup's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved

counterparties with high credit ratings except in case of strateglc investments in few entities, Investments in other than bank deposits are strategic long term investments which are done in accordance with spproval
from board of directors.

() Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations assaciated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash ar ancther financial aseet The Group's approach to

managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, Management manitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liguidity position and cash and
cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group takes into account the liguidity of the market in which the entity operates.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company’s financial Habilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities:

As at
Particulars March 31, 2022
Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Hor-derivative:
Borrowings including interest accrued 10,053.50 4,105.44 - 14,158 94
Lease liabilities 317.56 1,221.06 79737 1,335.99
Trade payables 4,281.34 . - 4787 34
Trade deposits from customers 163.48 - - 183,48
Other current financial liabilities 1,470.15 s - 2.470.15
Total non-derivative financial labilitkes 17,2686.03 5,326.50 797.37 13,409 %0
As at
Particulars March 31, 2021
Less than 1 year More than 1 year More than 5 year Total
Non-derivative: "
Borrowings including interest accrued 7,208.10 1,420.56 s.t:!.ue
Lease liabilities 45.36 8272 128.08
Trade payables 4,246.00 - "-f‘ﬁ e
Trade deposits from customers i:::: : : s ‘:::
m:“‘m‘m "Mf“::::l;l:::fs Liliti 13,804.40 1,503.18 - 15,309 &8
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Note 43: Capital management policies and procedures
Risk management

Qur principal source of lquidity are cash and bank balances (net of borrowings from banks) and cash flow that we generate from operations.

:“‘ Group’s policy fs to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investors, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future
evelopment and growth of its business. In order to maintain the capital structure, the Group monitors the return on capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders.
The Group aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to all

G’:“l'-"ﬁ capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other
other

_ ] Its shareholders. For the purpose of the
equity reserves and debt includes non-current borrowings, current barrowings and certain components of
financial liabilities less Cash in hand and with banks in current account or in deposit accounts.

The Group monitors capital based on the following gearing ratio:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
2,495.10 2,411.13

Equity
Other Equity

79,573.16 58,318.58
Total equity (i) 82,068.36 60,749.91
Total borrowings 14,122.68 B.615.23
Less: Cash and bank balances (including deposits with banks) 18,333.92 12,035,15
Total debt (if) (4,211.24) (3,419.92)
Overall financing (iii)= (i)+(ii) 77.857.12 57.319.99
Gearing ratio (ii)/(iii) -5.41% -5.97%
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the period ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,
(b) Dividend distribution
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Dividend paid INR Z per share (Previous year: INR 2 per share) before stock split from INR 10 each to 499.90 486.27

The dividend declared by the Parent Company is based on profits available for distribution as reported in the financial statements of the Parent Company. On September 03, 2021 the
Board of Directors of the Parent Company has proposed a dividend of INR 0,10 per share of face value of INR 1 each in respect of the year ended March 31, 2022 subject to the
approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. If approved, the dividend would result in a cash autflow of approximately INR 249,51 lakhs.

Note 44: Impairment of Solar Plant

The Parent Company has solar energy generation plants located at Kolayat and Gajner, Rajasthan, These plants were setup in 2013 and 2014, respectively. Various solar plant owner
has jointly filed a Writ Petition against Department of Energy (Rajasthan), Rajasthan Electricity Regulatory Commission, Jodhpur Vidyut Vitran Nigam Limited and Rajasthan Urja Vikas
Nigam Limited, for dispute related to power purchase agreement ("PPA’). In the absence of certainty of realisability of revenue from electricity distribution company, the Parsnt
Company has not recognised revenue from solar plants. Further, the dispute on PPA has led the Parent Company to assess the recoverability/ carrying value of the solar plants in its
books. Management, based on the assessment of projected cash generation, life of asset, progress of said court case and further contractual terms of PPA has recognised impairment of
INR 22.50 lakhs (previous year 112.49 lakhs) in the net carrying value of such asset during the year and management believes that the recoverable value of such asset excesd the net
carrying value as on reporting date, therefore, no further impairment is required in the books of account.

Note: 45 Impact of Covid-19

The World Health Organization announced a global health emergency because of a new strain of coronavirus (“COVID-19") and classified its outbreak as a pandemic on March 11, 2020.
On March 24, 2020, the Indian government announced a strict 21-day lockdown across the country to contain the spread of the virus. This pandemic and response thereon have
impacted most of the industries. Consequent to the nationwide lock down on March 24, 2020, the Group's operations were scaled down in compliance with applicable regulatory
orders. Subsequently, during the year, the Group's operations have been scaled up in a phased manner taking into account directives from various Government authorities. The impact
on future operations would, to a large extent, depend on how the pandemic further develops and it’s resultant impact on the operations of the Group.

The Management has made an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the Group’s operations, financial performance and position as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022 and has
concluded that there are no adjustments have been made to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Given the uncertainties associated with nature, condition and duration of COVID-
19, the Group continues to monitor the situation and take appropriate action, as considered necessary in due compliance with the applicable regulations.

Note: 46 Business Combination
On 3 February 2021, the Company acquired 51.22% of the issued share capital of Petunt Food Processors Private Limited , a manufacturer of packaged food product.

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and capital reserve are as fallows:

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Petunt Food Processors Private Limited as at the acquisition date were:
(&) Assets Acquired

Property, plant and equipment 1,467.25
Capital Work In Progress 18.30
Intangible Assets including D.82
Right of use - Assets (Leases) .235.18
Inventories - 13.62
Trade receivables 85.17
Cash and cash equivalents +46.06
Other finacial assets T0.47
Other current assets {' 40515

Total assets acquired (A) 3,762.12
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(B) Liabilities assumed

Bortowings 1,386.23
Lease liabilities 1,469.83
Provisions 20.59
Trade payables 522.92
Other Financial Liabilities 44.07
Other current liabilities 34.79
Total liabilities assumed (B) 3,478.43
Net Identifiable Assets (A - B) 183.69
Non controlling interest 16.45
Net assets attributable to the Company 67.13
Calculation of capital reserve

Purchase Consideration 118.00
Less:- Net Identifiable Assets Acquired 267.23

Capital Reserve 149.23

Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed INR 241.95 lakhs and INR 26.37 lakhs towards revenue and profit of the Group for the period February 03, 2021 to March 31, 2011
---Space intentionally left blank----
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Note 47 Additiansl information ax required under Schedule Il of the Act, of enterprises consolidated as subsidhary company:

For the vear ended March 11, 2022

Share In net assets e total assets | Share in profit or fows ‘Share in ather comprehe nsive income Share In total comprehensive income
minus total Rabilithes N
Particulary Az %ol Amount As Wof Amount | As % of comalidated sther Amount A3 % of corsolidated Amount
comalidated net comolidated comprehentive Incame total comprehensive
|_ — = assets profit o loss z income o=
[ R . =
Bika)i Foods International Limited 100.01% B1,074.18 10547 79950 TG AL, 597,57 104, T5% B,591.38
Subsidiary incorporated in India: | .
_ml Food Processons Private Limited | D.01% 15, B0 5T 139,001 o 5y, -4.75% (189.72)
Total ) - 100.00% 82,0686 100.00%] 7,602.81 100.00% 100 00%| 8,20).66
[ Share in net assets L e, total assets Share in profit or low Share in other comprehe mive Incame Share In total comprehentive income |
| mimus total Habilithes
Particulary a5 %of Amaunt as wof Amount | A1 % of consolidated other Amount A3 % of comolidated Amount
| comaolidated net comolidated comprehensive income total comprehertive
ety profit or loss e mme
Parent L .
| Bikajl Foods internat ional Limited 100, 20% 60.870.07 | 97.12%| B,771.33 1000, e (879,07}
Subsidiary incorporated in India: | | ===
Priunt Food Procesion Private Limited 0400 241,041 2885 16021
Subzidiary |MD‘I’P°‘I';E"d outside India: 1l }
BUc)l Facdy (Longor) LimMed - Das| o] .00 il | ... :
Total | 100.00% 80,745 81 | 100 DO 100, 00, (879.0T} =

Note 48: Social Security Code

The Code on Social Security 2020 [*the Code' relating to employes benefits, during the empioyment and pest employment, has recetved Presidential assent on September 28, 2020, The Code has been publiched in the Gazetis of indla

Further, the Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Movember 13, 2020, Howrver, the effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet ta be natified and rules for quantifying the
financial Impact are alse not yet sued, The Group will assess the fmpact of the Code and will ghve appropeiate impact in the Comalidated Financial Statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rule
to determine Lhe financial Impact are published.

Mote 45: Employes Stock Optiors Plan (ESOF)

The Shareholder of the Parent Company vide its special resolution dated October 22, 2011 i extraordinary general mesting (EGM) approved Bikaji ESOP-| 2071 & Bikaji ESOP-II 2021 [The Plan™) for granting the plan in form of squity
shares of maximum 50 lakhs stock options and linked to the completion of a minimum periad of continued employment to the eligible employees of the Group, which is being monitared and superviied by the nomination and
remuneration committes of the Board of Directors from time to time subject to the term B conditions specified in the plan and employse stock option agreement/grant letter. The empioyees can purchase equity shares by exercsing
the options as wested at the price specified in the grant. The stock option granted vest over s period of 1 years 7 years, as the case may be, from the date of grant in proportions specified in the respective ES0F Plams and such stock
oplions may be exarcised by the employee after vesting period within 7 years from the date of Vest.

Information in respect to employee stock option granted upto March 2022 under the plan are as follows:-

Year Date of grant Numbers of options granted Yesting year |Exercise year |Exercise prce

| | INR per share

021-22 January T, 2022 563,667 One year from the date of grant |7 years from the cate | 185
|of vesting |

201122 Jarwsary T, 2012 181,831 Two years from the date of grant ¥ ymars from the date | 185
lof westing

2021-22 Jarweary T, 2002 205,050 One year from the date of grant ‘:Tyu\‘j from the cate | 1
|of vesting

il Movement in employee stock aption during the year :

Particulars BIKAJ| ESOP-1 2021 BIKAJKESOP-Il 1021
Number of options Weighted Number of options Werghtea
average exercise average sxsitne
price INR price INR
Outstanding at the beginning of the year & 3 - -
Granted mr:ugg the year = 845,500 165 205,050 1
Fordeited / lapsed duning the year 10,500 165 14,100 1
Vested during the year . 5 3 :
Exercised during the year - - | 2 a
Outstanding at the end of the year 815,000 165 | 180,950 1
Exercrable option at the end of the year - = i =

(fi} Fair value on grant date :
The fair value at grant date s determined using the Black: Scholes valuation method which takes Into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and expected prce volablity of the underlying
share, the average dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option. The significant assumptions wsed to ascertain fair value of each option in accordance with Black scholes modei.

Particulars Year enced 1
March 31, 2022

BikAJI ESOP-1 2021

Weighted averase Talr value of the optiom at the grant dates (INR)
Dividend yield (%1

Wik free interest rate (%

Expected life of share option (years)

Expecied volatility (%)

Wegnted average share price (INR]

[Welghted average remaining contractual e (days |

Exerciie price

The Risk free interest rate being considered for the calculation i the Interest rate applicabde for the maturlty equal to expected lile of the stock aption based on the 2ere coupon yheld curve for the cleaiing corporation of india
limited, The dividend yield for the year ended i derived by dividing U dividend for the year ended with the cusrent market price.

[#il) During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company recorded an Share based payment espense of INR 267, 78 lakls | previous year INR NIL) in the Statement of Prolit and Loss and the balance i share aptiom autstanding account
as at March 31, 2022 s INR 267, 78 Lakhs (previouws year (NR Hil),

Hote 50 Material development subtequent to the Balance Sheet date

The Board of directors of the Parent Compsany iy approved the investment i Vindhyawasing Sales Private Limited vide resolution dated Seplember 1, 2021 The Farent Company has acquined all egquity shares of Vindhyawasini Sales
Private Limited from its existing shareholders on Apeil 1, 2027 by cbtaining Furm SH-4 for Lianslerring Lhe equity shares In the name of the Parent Company. Further Board of directors of the Parent Company has passed the resslution
dated June 7, 2022 & approved the share tramlet w.e.l April 1, 2022,




Bikafi Foods Internatinna Limited
Notes te Convalidated Financial

Tor the year ended March 11, 2021
(AT wmounts in INR Inkbs, usless otherwise stated)

Mote 51 Inftial Public Offtedng (IPO}

The Parent Compam B imder the process of getting its securities listed on the Stock Exchange. s part of the proposed of fering, The Parent Company filed ity Oraft Ried Herring Prospectus (DRHP") (n connection with the Tiling af an
Offer s yament fo proposed fisue of the aquity shares [the “Equity Shares™) by Bika|i Foods International Limited {the * Patent Company™| with the Sacurities and Exchange Baard of India (~SEBI®| and the Registrar of Companies,
Intpan on Februaty 77, 2077, Fulure, the Parent Comparry 15 in the process of filing Ried Herring Prospectes (RHP) n the financial year 202273 and beliewes that the Parent Company will be listed on NSE & BSE in financial year 2022-

Hh

Moke 82 Others

(81 The Group does nat have any undisclosed Incame which s not recorded in the books i account ihat has been surrendered of disclosed as income during Uhe year (previous year (A the tas aisssmants under the Income Tax Acl,
1961 {such ms, senrch or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 19611

(b The Groun does not have any transhctions with companies struck off umder section 748 of the Companies Act, 2013 ar section 560 of Companies Act, 1954

161, The Group doss not have amy Benam| property, where any proceeding has been initiated of pending against the company [or halding ary Benami property,

(). The Group has not traded ot invested in Cryplo eurrancy or Virtual Currency for the financial year 207122

leh The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the yeal 021-12,

|1} The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of saction 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number af Layers) Rules, 2017,
|g) The Group has not been declared Willul Defmulter fas defined by REI clreular) by any bank or financial institution or other lender .

{H) |1} The Group hat not sdvanced of laaned or invested funds Lo any other person(s) ar entityites), Including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
{n) directly or Indirectly lend of invest in other persans or entities tdentified in ary manner whatsoever by or on behall of Lhe group (Ultimate Benediclaries | o
{bi provide any guarantes, security or the |ike to or on behalf of the Ullimate Banedicaries

(1) The Growp has not received any fund from any personis] of entityiies), including foreign entities {Funding Party| with the understanding {whether recorded in wriling or atherwie) that the Growp shall;
(i) directly or indirectly end or invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner whattoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneliciaries| or
(i) provide any guarantes, security of the |ike on behall of the Ultimate Beneliciarks,

Hote 53

The Subsidiary Company, Petunt Food Processors Private Limited, has a net working capital deficit of INR 158,54 lakhs as of March 11, 2027, Further, net worth of the Subsidiary has also eroded during the year ended March J1, 2022,
However, the {inancial statements of the Subsidiary company have been prepared on a going concern hasls, since the Subsidiary fs incorporated during the Financial year 201718 and the management belimess the Subsidiary company
1o be peofitabie in near future. Further, the Subsidiary company has also recelved 8 suppart letter from its Halding Company Lo provide financial support to continue as going concern, Accardingly, financial statements of the sutnidiary
company are prepared on a going concern basts and such Sutnidiary is not material to the Group.

Mote 54

The Patent Company avails the short term credit facility from bank on the baws of wecurity of Inventory & book debts & filed its quarterly ret urnfetatement with the banks for the quarter ended June 30, 2021, September 30, 2021,
December 31, 2021 & March 31, 2022 K the same are in agreement with books of accounts other than thase below:
Furthet the Parent Company has submitted the revised quarterly statement/return with the banks for the aforesaid guarters subsequent 1o March 31, 2022 & the same are in agrasment with books of accounts

Quarter Name of Bank | Particularsof | Amounta: | Amountas | Difference (INR in lakhs) Reasar for material discrepancies
Security reported inthe | per Books
Provided quarterly return/ | of Account
statement {INR in {INR in

lakhs} Iakhs)
5,576,108 1333.58) | Difference s pertaining majarly on account of opening Goods-in-
transit as on March 31, 2021 and the same has not peen updated in
the books of account as at June 30, 2021 appropristely.

Criarter Il State Bank of India | Irventory E.981.68 F196.47 1214.79)|  Difference is pertaining majorly on accsunt of spening Goods-n-
transit as on March 31, 2021 and the iame has not been updated in
the books of account a: at September 30, 2021 aposopriately.

Detstors 10,805.40 9, 564,06 1,241, 34| Major Differences on account of following reasars: -

1, Amount received through cheque from customern and mot

| deposited into banks and kept as chegues in hand

1. Balance pertaining to branch office has been comsidersd fwice
inadvertently in stock statements as at Sep 30, 2027 submitied oy
thes Covmpany.

3. Adjustment of debit and credit nobes rsusd by the Parent
Company subsequent to September 10, 2021 and not considered oy
the Compary at the time of submission of statements to bank as on
September 30, 2021

4, Balance pertaining 1o a8vVances 1a vandor inasvertently adoed 0
defotor balances while submitting statement to banks = on
September 30, 2021

Quarter | State Bank of india |Inventory |

Quarter 1l Saate Bank of India | Inventory 5,484,55 5,641,958 [158.43) | Difference is pertaining majorly on sccount of inwentories st some of
the lecakions (Kolkata, Bargalore and Guwahatl| were erromsously
not included in the stock statement with the banks a3 on December
3, 22
Quarter Iv ‘State Bank of India i | Debtors 8,897.08 | B,549.09 348.00| Major Differences on account of foilowing reasces -
HDFC Bank limited 1. Balance pertaining Lo inter corporate deposits Nadvertently added
in debtor balances while submitting statement o Sanss & on March
1, 2022

1. Adjustment of gdebit and credit notes ssued by the Parent
| Company submequent to March 31, 2022 and mot corsiceread oy the
Company at the Lime of submission of sLatements Lo Dank &5 3

| March 31, 2022,
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